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Vision, Mission and Objectives 
of the Company

VISION

To be a Globally Respected Organization by catering the needs of all Consumers for the Quality 
Medicines, Life Saving Drugs, Chemicals and Home Products at Affordable Prices. 

MISSION

• To achieve Manufacturing Facilities complying with International Standards. 

• To continuously improve the Quality of Products with Innovations and R&D initiatives, 
meeting International Standards, thereby enhancing Customer Satisfaction. 

• To commit for Environmental Protection, Conservation and Green Initiatives for the 
Promotion of Sustainable Growth. 

• To develop highly motivated and talented Human Resources to meet the needs of 
challenging business environment.

• To socially commit and maintain highest standards of Corporate Governance and Corporate 
Social Responsibility.

• To bring about cost efficiencies for improving net worth. 

OBJECTIVES

Company will strive to fulfill its Vision /Mission by:

• Attaining rapid growth with high quality of products and cost competitiveness and 
leadership in the main product categories;

• Creating a culture of continuous innovation in R&D and Customer Care;

• Emphasizing on Environmental Friendly Activities that bring out Conservation of Resources 
and Waste Management leading Sustainable Development; and 

• Improving Employee satisfaction levels by adopting modern Human Resource Management 
methods.

QUALITY POLICY

• To produce drug items conforming to the prescribed standards. 

• Maintenance of quality at all stages of manufacturing & quality control operations.

• To enhance consumers' satisfaction. 

• To ensure continual improvement of the effectiveness of the quality management system, 
with the involvement of all employees.
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Registered Office / Corporate Office  
6, Ganesh Chander Avenue, Kolkata-700013 
Tel No. (033)2237-1525/1526;   Fax: (033) 2225-7697
Website: www.bengalchemicals.co.in ; Email :bcplmdsecretariat@gmail.com

Mumbai Factory                                                                                
502, S.V.Savarkar Marg, Pravadevi,
Mumbai - 400025
Tel No. 022-2430 2081
E-mail: works_mumfy@bengalchemicals.co.in

Kanpur Factory                                                                 
84/23, Factory Area, Fazalganj
Kanpur - 208012
Tel No. 0512- 221 6292
E-mail: works_kfy@bengalchemicals.co.in

OUR DEPOTS

Delhi Depot                                                           
DI-DII, Shivlok House – II
Karampura Commercial Complex
Opp: Milan Cinema Complex,
New Delhi -110 015
Tel No. 8053354553
E-mail: bengalchemicals@gmail.com

Guwahati Depot              
294, Jatin Tamuli Path
Garalia, Sarusajai
Guwahati -781040
E-mail: bcpl.guwahati@gmail.com

Chennai Depot    
No. 19A/88, Venkatesh Nagar, Extension-1, 

ndIInd Cross, 2  Street, 
Virugambakkam, Chennai - 600092
Tel No. 044- 2376 4510; 
E-mail: bcplchennaidepot@yahoo.com

Ranchi
Suvam Suravi Niwas, Ketari Bagan,
Swarnerekha Nagar Main Road,
Namkum, Ranchi-834010
Tel No. +91-8882388794 
E-mail: sachin7860@yahoo.co.in

Hyderabad Depot                                                     
 Door no. 4-98-1-6,

New Narasimha Nagar Main Road, Malapuram
Near - Noma Kalayan Vedeka
Hyderabad - 500076
Tel No. +91-8008150255
E-mail: bcplhyd@gmail.com

Jaipur Depot
17, Yamuna Path, Patel Nagar East
Behind Laxmi Kanta, 22 Godown
Jaipur – 302006, Rajasthan
Tel No.:8619596774

OUR OFFICES

OUR RETAIL STORES
1. 6, Ganesh Chunder Avenue, Kolkata-700013
2. 153, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata-700013

3. 44, Gopal Lal Thakur Road, Kolkata-700036
4. 502, S.V. Savarkar Marg, Prbhadevi, Mumbai-400025

Maniktala Factory & Central Store
164 Manicktala Main Road,
Kolkata – 700054
Tel No. 033–2320 4157/4158 
Email: qa_mfy@bengalchemicals.co.in

Panihati Factory
B.T. Road, P.O. – Panihati,
Kolkata – 700114, 24 Paragans (North)
Tel No. 033 – 2553 1924/4541
E-mail: works_pfy@bengalchemicals.co.in

OUR FACTORIES
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS
nd 

I welcome you all to this 42 Annual General 
Meeting of your Company, Bengal Chemicals & 
Pharmaceuticals Limited (BCPL) and I thank you for 
making it convenient to attend the meeting. During 
the year under review, your Company has exceled 
in performance parameters by reporting Net Profit 
continuously for seven years and now the Company 
has also become a Positive Net Worth Company as 
well. Your Company has performed well and 
continue to excel in the areas of Pharmaceuticals 
and Home products despite various obstacles.

The last few years of the pandemic coupled with 
the nation's rapid digitalisation journey had a 
significant impact on consumers. Availability of 
BCPL's products in E-Commerce Platform has made 
a significant impact on the presence of the 
organisation, by availability of the products and 
creating an awareness in the consumer at large.

We have also embarked on several initiative in 
increasing the production of FMCG range and we 
are poised to outperform the competition with our 
offerings, quality, brand equity and image. The 
Company is all set to grab greater market share in 
its Represented Product Market in order to cross all 
its past records and set a new milestone in the 
industry. Our flagship product, Phenol is playing a 
vital role in India's transition to a cleaner and 
healthier environment by ensuring hygeine for all 
as well as a proud partner of the Government 
initiative of “Swachh Bharat Abhiyan”.

A.  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

It is a great pleasure for me to share that the status 
of the legendary organization has now changed to 
one which is profit making after a successful 
turnaround from decades of losses and negative 
net worth till sometime back. The Company has 
dispelled its past darkness with seven years of 
illuminous performance since its turnaround in 
2016-2017.

The Boards' report of the Company for the year 
st ended 31 March, 2023 along with necessary 

enclosures have already been provided to all 
Shareholders and with your permission, I shall 
consider them as “Read”. The Board Report 
continues to be comprehensive and gives an in-
depth and detailed analysis of Company's working, 
its aims & objectives and the opportunities & 
hurdles that BCPL faced during the year. I will 
therefore only endeavour to present you briefly a 
few relevant and major issues that are before us. 
The Board report includes all the Statutory 
Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 
2013, DPE Guidelines and Secretarial Standards.  

Lastly it is indeed a matter of pride that after 
incurring losses for so many years the Company has 
now turned around to become a profit making 
entity and has become eligible for contributing to 
the society through its CSR activities.

B. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: 

I take pleasure to congratulate all of you not only 
for maintaining “Profit Making Turnaround 
Company” status but also to achieve profit 
continuously for last seven years. During the year 
2022-23, the Company achieved a Profit of Rs. 
11.17 Crore against a profit of Rs. 9.24 Crore in the 
previous year with a substantial growth of 21%. It is 
pertinent to state that both production and 
marketing depts. synergized their performances 
and for which the Company could increase its 
production by 62 % as compared to the previous 
year.

C. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

It is also a matter of great delight to state that FY. 
2022-23 has been the one of most successful year in 
the history of our Company in terms of all 
performance parameters. Our revenue from 
operations grew by an impressive 63%, from 
Rs.62.37 crore in FY 2021-22 to Rs.101.56 crore in 
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FY 2022-23. Accordingly, our overall income 
(including income from other source) increased 
from Rs.72.05 crore to Rs.112.82 crore. 
Pharmaceutical  Div is ion is  the segment 
contributing highest to the Turnover of the 
Company and this segment has contributed 64% to 
the total turnover during 2022-23. The second 
largest segment has been Home Products division 
contributing 34% to the total Turnover. Your 
Company has achieved a Gross Margin (PBDIT) of 
Rs.16.28 Crore.

D. CORPORATE GOVERNANACE:

I am happy to say that BCPL is maintaining the 
standard of “Good Corporate Governance” by 
adhering to the Guidelines issued by the 
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), 
Government of India continuously for the last 
seven years. We as a team, stand committed 
relentlessly to achieve greater heights for good 
Corporate Governance in the years to come.

E. TECHNOLOGY UP-GRADATION AND 
PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

● We have introduced the use of Kyron T-314 in 
Norfloxacin Tabs IP 400mg for better 
dissolution result. Kyron T-314 and Kyron T-316 
breaks the tablets into very smaller particles, 
and thus increases the effective surface area 
for the absorption of the active substances. 
Resultantly it increases the dissolution and 
bioavailability of the active substances.

● Both Kyron T-314 and Kyron T-316 were also 
inducted in Cefuroxime Axetil Tablets IP 250mg 
where slugging and direct compression method 
is adopted to achieve better dissolution of the 
coated Tablets( Organic solvent coating with 
Ready Mix powder)

● The above technical initiatives helped our 
product to become superior in quality with 
greater pharmacological efficiency.

(ii)  Upgradation of Ferric Alum Plant: The Ferric 
Alum production plant is situated at BCPL's 

Panihati Factory. The Ferric Alum plant is very 
age old and even after becoming a CPSE since 
1977, the plant has not been modernized/ 
developed and from the said plant the 
Company is producing the BIS Grade-II Alum 
Ferric and supplying the same to CPSEs like 
NTPC, SAIL and PHEs.

 Now, BIS Grade IV Ferric Alum is the order of 
the day for all the major Procurement 
Authorities like NTPC, SAIL and Public Health 
Engineering shifted from BCPL as BCPL could 
not offer them BIS Grade IV Ferric Alum and 
they can't purchase Grade II Alum as per their 
Purchase Policies.

 Currently work in respect of setting up of 
Grade IV Alum plant at Panihati factory is in    
advance stage and upon completion of the 
same the Company would be able to upgrade 
its product from Grade II alum to Grade IV alum 
and garner appreciable volume of business of 
the said products. 

 BCPL henceforth could be able to generate 
Unit Turnover of 6800 MT, the value of which at 
present rates Rs.1357.00 Lakhs, with a margin/ 
contribution of Rs.277.35 Lakhs.

 MARKETING INITIATIVES: 

i)  BCPL entered into Modern Trade through 
business association/ partnership with 
Reliance Retails Ltd, the largest retail chain in 
the Country. With this the brands of BCPL will 
be available in various formats of retails like 
Smart Bazar, Reliance Mart, Metro Cash & 
Carry, Reliance Kirana etc.

ii) Initiatives are being made to achieve a 
s i g n i fi c a n t  a n d  c u s t o m e r  f r i e n d l y 
transformation from glass bottles of Pheneol 
450ml to unbreakable bottle of Pheneol 450 ml 
which is indeed the largest selling stock 
keeping unit of the Company today.

iii) In view of the brand equity of disinfectants and 
the brands in FMCG segment, the marketing 
endeavour of the Company is apt to expand in 
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all segments of cleaning especially in home like 
Kitchen, Wash Rooms, Floors, marbles, Glass, 
metal, Car, Computers/Mobile phones 
specifically applying the nanotechnology and 
disinfectant power of the silver. The 
Organisation thus involved in the process of 
segmentation to offer more solution for unmet 
needs.

iv) The main revenue churners of the organisation 
are 'Phenol' and 'Naphthalene' considering the 
brand equity and volume. These brands are 
capable of becoming more exciting by brand 
extension like variants of Phenoel specifically 
for modern home floors made up of vitrified 
tiles and marbles along with added mosquito's 
repellent/fly repellent and deodorant 
properties.

 The segment developed plans are being 
explored and taken forward for Brand Building, 
Value Building and Image Building exercise of 
the legendary organisation.

vi)  We have prioritized internal efficiency, cost 
reduction, and high productivity as key drivers 
for exceptional outcomes. Our unwavering 
commitment to customer satisfaction propels 
us to continuously improve our products to 
surpass expectations and meet evolving 
demands. Seeding new technologies and 
improvised production unit aimed at 
continuously improving our products and 
processes lies at the centre of your Company's 
efforts to achieve these goals.

F. HUMAN RESOURCES: 

With the successfu l  implementat ion of 
Management by Objective the employees of your 
Company are motivated and energetic to be a part 
of the vibrant present and bright future of the 
Legendary Company.

G. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

At the outset, I gratefully acknowledge the 
continued support and help received from the 

Department of Pharmaceuticals, Department of 
Public Enterprises, Comptroller & Auditor General 
of India, various Other Ministries of Government of 
India, Government of West Bengal, various State 
Governments, Registrar of Companies, Drug 
Controller Authority, due to which BCPL became a 
“Turnaround Profit Making Company” in 2016-17 

th 
and for the consecutive 7 year also BCPL reported 
a Net Profit in 2022-23. I also acknowledge the 
support and contribution made by all our valued 
“Statutory Auditor, Cost Auditor, Internal Auditor, 
Bankers, Tax Auditors, Clients, Customers, 
Suppliers, Liaisoners, C&F Agents and Stockists” 
and convey my sincere whole hearted thanks for 
their trust in doing business with the Company or 
extending services to this great Organisation, 
which was established by Acharya Prafulla Chandra 
Ray, the Father of Indian Chemistry.

I sincerely convey my thanks to the present 
Directors as well as past Directors of your Company 
for their valuable support and contribution in 
steering the company to achieve this glorious 
performance during last seven years. Finally, I take 
this opportunity to convey my special thanks to the 
Unions and “Building Blocks” i.e. the “EMPLOYEES” 
of your organization, who have extended full 
cooperation to make BCPL a Profit Making 
Turnaround Company and also became a Positive 
Net Worth Company.

I am sure that the Company will continue to mine 
ahead with innovation and achievement as 
envisaged by the Legendary Founder Acharya 
Prafulla Chandra Ray and discharge our duty to 
preserve the Organization for our future 
generation.

Sd/- 
(NIRJA SARAF) 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given to all the shareholders of 
Bengal Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited that 

nd
the 42  Annual General Meeting of the Company is 

th
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 26  September, 
2023 at 13:00 Hrs at its Registered Office at 6, 
Ganesh Chunder Avenue, Kolkata 700013, both 
through Physical mode and through Video 
conferencing mode to transact the following 
business:- 

Ordinary Business

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 

st
31  March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors to 
be appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor 
General of India for the financial year 2023-24. 

 In terms of provisions of Section 142 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of the 
Auditors shall be fixed by the Company in 
General Meeting or in such manner as the 
Company in General Meeting may determine. 
Hence, it is proposed that the Members may 
authorize the Board to fix the remuneration of 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2023-24, as may be deem fit.

By Order of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Puja Guin

Company Secretary

Date: 05/09/2023
Place: Kolkata

Special Business:

1. To approve the remuneration of the Cost 

Auditors of  the Company for the Financial Year 
st

ending on 31  March, 2024 and in this regard, to 

consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 

force), M/s. Bandyopadhyaya Bhaumik & Co., 

Cost Accountants, is appointed as Cost Auditor 

for conducting the Cost Audit of the Company, 

for the financial year 2023-24, at a total fee of 

Rs.70,000/- plus applicable taxes, excluding 

TA/DA and out of Pocket expenses, if any, be and 

is hereby ratified.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 

Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

authorized to do all acts and take all such steps 

as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 

effect to this resolution.”
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NOTES
1. MCA vide its circular no. 10/2022 dated 

28.12.2022, has directed that Companies 
may conduct Annual General Meeting 
through video conferencing mode on or 

t hbefore  30  September,  2023.  The 
attendance of the Members attending the 
AGM through VC will also be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013

2. A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY ENTITLED TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY IN 
WRITING DULY SIGNED BY HIM TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, AND THE PROXY 
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY 
SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT 
LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 

3. Proxy Form in duplicate is attached herewith. 
It is requested that the members of the 
Company who wants to appoint his proxy, 
return the same duly filled, signed and 
stamped. 

4. Proxy form which does not state the name of 
the proxy or undated shall not be considered 
valid.

5. Every Member entitled to vote at a meeting of 
the Company, or on any resolution to be moved 
thereat, shall be entitled during the period 
beginning twenty-four hours before the time 
fixed for the commencement of the meeting 
and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, 
to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time 
during the business hours of the Company 
provided not less than three days' notice in 
writing of the intention so to inspect is given to 
the Company.

6. Members are requested to kindly notify the 
Company of any changes in their addresses/ e-
mail addresses so as to enable the Company to 

address future communication to their correct 
addresses.

7. The Shareholders may please write to the 
email-id companysecretary.bcpl@gmail.com 
for any queries/ complaints/ grievances.

 Statement Pursuant To Section 102(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 

 The following Statement sets out all material 
facts relating to the Special Business 
mentioned in the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 1 of Special Business

M/s. Bandyopadhyaya Bhaumik & Co., Cost 
Accountants has been appointed as the Cost 
Auditor of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-2024, 
based on score achieved and fees quoted, as per 
the EOI floated for the selection of Cost Auditor. 

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors is to be ratified by the Shareholders of the 
Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for 
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item 
No. 1 of Special Business of the Notice for 
ratification of the remuneration payable to the 

st
Cost Auditors for the financial year ending on 31  
March, 2024. 

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company/ their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 
in the resolution set out at Item No.1 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set 
out at Item No. 1 of Special Business of the Notice 
for approval by the Members.

Date  : 05/09/2023 
Place : Kolkata

By Order of Board of Directors
Sd/-

Puja Guin
Company Secretary
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN :     U24299WB1981GOI033489

Name of the company :  Bengal Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Registered office :   6, Ganesh Chunder Avenue, Kolkata – 700 013

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the holder(s) of ……………………..………………………………. shares of the above named company, 
hereby appoint

1. Name :

 Address :

 E-mail Id :

 Signature : ................................................................ or failing him

2. Name :

 Address :

 E-mail Id :

 Signature : ................................................................ or failing him

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 42nd Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on the 26th September, 2023 at 13:00 Hrs. at Registered Office of the 
Company at 6 Ganesh Chunder Avenue Kolkata-700013 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolution as are indicated below:
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Resolutions:

Ordinary Business

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for year ended 31st March, 

2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors to be appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of 

India for the financial year 2023-24.

Special Business:

1.  To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31st 

March, 2024.

Signed this .............................day of ............................ 2023

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note : This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

To

 All Shareholders of BCPL

 Copy to: 

 i. All Directors of BCPL

 ii. Secretary to the Govt. of India,

  Department of Pharmaceuticals 

  Ministry of Chemicals &   Fertilizers  

  Shastri Bhawan, New Delhi-110001

 iii.   Statutory Auditor of the Company

By Order of Board of Directors

Sd/-

Puja Guin

  Company Secretary

Date  : 05/09/2023 

Place : Kolkata
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BOARDS' REPORT

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS
nd

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 42  
Annua l  Repo r t  o f  Benga l  Chemica l s  & 
Pharmaceuticals Limited (BCPL) on the business 
and operations of your Company and its Audited 
Financial Statements together with the Auditor's 
Report and comments of Comptroller & Auditor 
General of India thereon for the financial year 

st
ended on 31  March 2023.

1.  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year 2022-23, your Company achieved a 
turnover of Rs.10156 Lakhs compared to Rs.6237 
Lakhs achieved during the year 2021-22. Similarly, 
your Company has earned Profits continuously for 
seven years, i.e. 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-
20, 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23. During the year 
under review, your Company has reported a Net 
Profit of Rs.1019 Lakhs against the Net Profit of 
Rs.747 Lakhs in 2021-22.

The financial highlights and the key financial ratios 

of your Company during the year 2022-23 along 

with the figures of corresponding previous year are 

as under:

*Company got Excellent Corporate Governance Rating as per 
its self evaluation report.

2.  CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 
8000 Lakhs (divided into 800000 equity shares of 
Rs. 1000/- each) and paid-up share capital of the 
Company is Rs. 7696 Lakhs (divided into 769604 
equity shares of Rs. 1000/- each).

3.  DIVIDEND & RESERVES  

Your Company is reporting Profit for last seven 
years. But due to reporting of continuous Losses in 
earlier years, the Company is having debit balance 
of Rs10693 Lakh in its P&L Account as on 
31/03/2023. Further, Govt. of India vide Order 
under  fi le  No 53017/08/2017-PSU(Part ) 
dt.09/9/2021 has given waiver of GoI Loan along 
with Accrued Interest amounting to Rs.193.71 
Crore, which had been transferred to Reserve & 
Surplus resulting in Positive Net Worth as on 
31/03/2022. However, as there is debit balance of 
Rs10693 Lakh in the P & L Account as on 
31/03/2023, hence no Dividend is declared.

4.  PRODUCTION

During the year under review, your Company 
achieved a production of Rs.13713 Lakhs against 
Rs.8473 Lakhs achieved during the previous year 
2021-22. 

5.  OPERATIONS

The products of BCPL are categorized in three 
categories, named (i) Industrial Chemical 
(Division-I), Pharmaceuticals (Division-II), and 
Home Products (Division-III). During the year 2022-
23, the achievements of aforesaid divisions are 
mentioned below:

5.1 Industrial Chemical (Division I): 

  Industrial Chemicals Division of your Company 
has achieved a Net Turnover of Rs.197 Lakh in 
2022-23. This Division contributed 2% in the 
Turnover of BCPL for the year 2022-23.
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5.2 Pharmaceuticals Division (Division II): 

  Pharmaceuticals Division of BCPL has reported 
a Net Turnover of Rs.6507 Lakhs in 2022-23. 
This Division contributed 64% in the Turnover of 
the Company for the year 2022-23. 

5.3 Home Products (Division III):

  Home Products Division of Company has 
achieved a Net Turnover of Rs.3452 Lakhs in 
2022-23. This Division contributed 34% in the 
Turnover of the Company for the year 2022-23.

6.  MARKET ING  IN IT IAT IVES /  KEY 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

6.1 Brands of BCPL were exposed to on the click 
availability for its FMCG range through 
strategic tie-up with famous Online Retail 
Store named "Bigbasket"(a TATA Enterprise), 
which is operating successfully at Kolkata city. 

6.2 BCPL entered into Modern Trade through 
business association/partnership with Reliance 
Retails Ltd, the largest retail chain in the 
Country.  With this the brands of BCPL will be 
available in various formats of retails like 
Smart Bazer, Reliance Mart, metro Cash & 
Carry, Reliance Kirana etc. 

6.3 BCPL is relentlessly working on to offer 
efficient floor and surface cleaners required 
for modern homes with "in built" mosquito, fly 
and odor repellant properties. 

6.4 Initiatives are being made to achieve a 
s i g n i fi c a n t  a n d  c u s t o m e r  f r i e n d l y 
transformation from glass bottles of Pheneol 
450ml to unbreakable bottle of Pheneol 450 ml 
which is indeed the largest selling stock 
keeping unit of the Company today. 

7.  STATUS OF STRATEGIC SALE OF BCPL

On 28th December 2016, the Union Cabinet had 
approved the Strategic Sale of BCPL and against the 
said decission, Bengal Chemicals Sramik 

Karmachari Union had filed a Writ Petition before 
the Honourable High Court of Calcutta on 
20/06/2017 and an Order was passed by the 
Honourable High Court of Calcutta on 13th 
February, 2018 setting aside the decision of the 
Union Cabinet for strategic sale of BCPL against 
which an appeal was preferred before the Hon'ble 
Division Bench of Honourable High Court of 
Calcutta.  The appeal is pending for necessary 
adjudication. 

8.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the 
year 2022-23, as required under the Guidelines on 
Corporate Governance for CPSEs is placed at 
Annexure-I to this Report.

9.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BCPL is committed to follow Good Corporate 
Governance Practices in conducting business in a 
legal, ethical, and transparent manner. BCPL has 
been complying with the Corporate Governance 
Gu ide l i nes  i s sued  by  DPE  and  submi t s 
quarter ly/annual  Compl iance Report  to 
Administrative Ministry. For the Year 2022-23, your 
Company has got "EXCELLENT" rating for 
compl iance of  Guidel ines  on Corporate 
Governance issued by DPE for CPSEs as per its self 
evaluation report. Further, DPE awarded the BCPL 
with "EXCELLENT" Corporate Governance Rating 
for the year 2021-22, 2020-21, 2019-20, 2018-19, 
2017-18, 2016-17 and 2015-16. Hence, BCPL has 
got "EXCELLENT" Corporate Governance rating 
continuously for last 8 years. The Report on 
Corporate Governance along with Compliance 
Certificate from the Practising Company Secretary 
has been placed at Annexure-II to this Report.

10. VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES 

The Vigilance Department plays an advisory role to 
the top management in matters pertaining to 
vigilance. It is headed by a Part-time Chief 
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Vigilance Officer appointed by Department of 
Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of Chemicals & 
Fertilizers, Government of India and One Part-time 
Vigilance Officer. The Vigilance Department 
ensures compliance and implementation of 
guidelines/procedures of Central Vigilance 
Commission (CVC) through preventive checks like 
(i) Quarterly Notice of Transparency (ii) Use 
Website for tenders and contracts. 

During the year 2022-23, 6 surprise inspections 
were made by the Department. Quarterly Returns 
viz. Annual Action and Anti Corruption measures 
and Monthly Reports of CVO were sent to CVC in 
stipulated time. In addition to this, some of the 
following preventive measures were initiated:

●  Expansion of vendor base to ensure 
competitiveness; 

●  Demarcation & Digitization of BCPL's land 
records and maintain them in safe custody 
under the locker system of BCPL's Banker;

●  Strengthening of Audit System;

●  Installation of CCTVs to check material 
movements and improve security 
environment in all units of BCPL;

●  Adoption of Whistle Blower Policy.

11. HUMAN RESOURCE 

As on 31st March 2023, your Company has 123 
employees, out of which 30 employees are 
technically and/ or professionally qualified. The 
Company has 14 women employees. Various social 
security schemes like Provident Fund, Gratuity and 
Group Accidental Insurance Schemes are also in 
place in the Company.

11.1 Status On Presidential Directives:

(A) Directives on reservation policy for reserved 
category persons

  Presidential Directives on reservation policy 
issued by Government of India from time to 
time provide for certain percentages of 

reservation in direct recruitment and for 
specified reserved category of candidates, i.e. 
SCs, STs, OBCs and Physically Challenged. 
Besides, the Directives also contain provision 
of certain concessions and relaxations in direct 
recruitments, and reservation for specified 
category of employees. The Presidential 
Directive on reservation of SC/ST/OBC/EWS is 
15%, 7.5%, 27%, and 10% respectively. Since 
BCPL was a Loss Making PSU since its 
nationalisation i.e. 1981 and the recruitment 
of employees is considered for Statutory/key 
functional areas, the Presidential Directives on 
reservation of SC/ST/OBC/PHC/EWS cannot be 
complied with full extent.  But the process of 
inducting the required numbers will be done 
along with the improvement in performance of 
the Company

(B) SC/ST/OBC Employees:

  The strength of SC/ST/OBC employees on the 
rolls of the Company as on 31st   March 2023 
was 16, 1 and 5 respectively, which constituted 
13.01%, 0.81%, and 4.07% of the total strength 
respectively.

(C)  Physically Challenged Persons:  

  The number of physically challenged persons 
as on 31st March 2023 were 9 which constituted 
7.32% of the total strength of employees. The 
Physically Handicapped employees are 
engaged in light jobs commensurate with their 
physical ability.

11.2 Manpower Status:

a)  Total Employees including details  of 
SCs/STs/OBCs/ Physically Challenged/ 
Minorities as on 31  March 2023 is mentioned 

st

below:

19



BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LTD., KOLKATA

(A Government of India Enterprise)

42  ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23ND

b) Representation of SCs/STs/OBCs/ Physically 
Challenged Persons as on 31/03/2023 is  as 
under:

Percentage

* 'A' denotes to Level XIII to XIX, 'B' denotes to Level X to XII, 'C' 
denotes to Level IV to IX, 'D' denotes to Level I to III 

11.3 Training of Employees and Senior  

Management

  The Company also takes initiatives for 

harnessing the inherent strength of its 

employees through training. Employees are 

sponsored for training programmes, seminars, 

workshops, etc. to enhance their technical, 

communication, personal skills. During the 

year 2022-23, 64 Man-Days training was 

imparted. Further, BCPL has also implemented 

a Directors' Training Policy to provide the 

training to newly appointed Directors on the 

Board of BCPL. Following are the other details 

of In-House and External Trainings provided by 

BCPL to its employees:

a)  In-House Training: 

  During the year 2022-23, BCPL organized In-

house training programs. The detail of all in-

house training programs is given as under: 

b)  External Training: 

 During the year 2022-23, Your Company 
nominated its Officials for external training 
programs organized by various reputed 
Departments/ Organisations. The details of 
external Training Programs are given as under:

Sl. 
No. 

Date Venue Theme  
Total 

Mandays
1 28-05-2022 

Corporate Office  
Fire Safety 
Management  

8  
2 22-07-2022 6  
3 17-09-2022 6  
4 

06-09-2022 Maniktala Factory  
Fire Safety 
Management  

19  

5 
27-09-2022 Panihati Factory  

Fire Safety  
Management  

15  

Total 54  

Sl. 
No.

Date
 

Venue
 

Theme
 Total 

Mandays
1 17-10-2022 Hotel Taj Bengal, 

Kolkata 
Training and 
Interaction with 
Vigilance Officers  

4

2 29-11-2022 to  
01-12-2022 

Expo Centre, 
Noida, New Delhi  

Exhibition of CPHI 
PMEC India  

6

Total 10

12. P R O PA G AT I O N  O F  O F F I C I A L   
   LANGUAGE

BCPL fol lows Government guidel ines on 
implementation of Official Language/ Hindi at its 
Corporate Office, all Factories and all its Depots. 
Section 3(3) of Official languages Act, 1963 (as 
amended) emphasizes mandatory use of Hindi and 
English language in various works of the Company.

The efforts of the Company is to promote the use of 
Hindi in its official work, through Hindi noting, 
drafting, orders and circulars etc., printing in Hindi 
on the Stationery materials, Labels, Cartons, 
packing of medicines etc., along with English. 

Cash awards are being given to employees who 
have passed Praveen & Pragya examinations as per 
Government Guidelines. Company also subscribes 
Hindi Newspapers for its employees. Hindi version 
of Company's website has also been uploaded. The 
Hindi Pakhwara was also organized in Corporate 
Office, all factories of your Company from 14th 
September 2022 to 28th September 2022 in which 
officers and employees of BCPL participated. An 
Official Language Implementation Committee 
consisting seven Senior Officers of BCPL under the 
Chairmanship of Managing Director has also been 
constituted. This Committee meets regularly and 
makes its suggestions and recommendation to 
improve the application of Official Language in 
Daily Routine Official works. During the year 2022-
23, the targets in respect of Correspondence, 
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Notings & Draftings etc. set by Government of India 
in Annual Program of 2022-23 were achieved by the 
BCPL.

The Company continued its endeavour to 
encourage the eligible employees by arranging 
Hindi Workshops, Seminars and Trainings etc. to 
motivate the employees for more official work in 
Hindi. During the year under review, 4 workshops 
were conducted. Further, in the year 2022-23, four 
Meetings of “Official Language Implementation 
Committee” of BCPL were conducted. 

Company also nominates its employees for Hindi 
Competitions/ Programs organized by various 
member organizations of Town Official Language 
Implementation Committee.

13. ECONOMY IN ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENDITURE

Keeping in  view the Government Directives, efforts 
were made to achieve economy in expenditures of 
BCPL during the year 2022-23. During the year 
under review, the percentage of Administrative 
Expenses to the Total Income was 25.46% against 
32.17% in previous year 2021-22. BCPL has 
implemented various systems and processes in the 
Company for cost savings.

14. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Industrial Relations scenario in all the 
Factories, Depots and the Business Sector/Offices 
of the company remained harmonious and peaceful 
during the year 2022-23. The thrust on 
participative culture and communication 
continued during the year.

15.  SAFEGUARD OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE

An Act to provide protection against sexual 
harassment of women at workplace and for the 
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual 
harassment and for matters connected therewith 
or incidental thereto called “The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013”, has come 

th
into force from 9  December 2013 with notification 
of rules by Ministry of Women and Child 
Development, Government of India.  The 
provisions of the Act and the rules thereon are 
being strictly complied with. In accordance with 
the Act, an internal Complaints Committee has 
been constituted. No complaint of sexual 
harassment is received during the year 2022-23. 
The official website of the Company also contains 
the “The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013”. 

16. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Presently the Board of BCPL comprises the 
following:

Sl. No.

 

Name

 

With effect from

 

1.

 

Mrs. Nirja Saraf

 

Managing Director 

 

15th

 

October 
2020

 

2.

 

Shri Parveen Kumar

 

Part–time Official Director

 

(Government

 

Nominee 
Director)

 

10th

 

June 2020

 

to 

 

5th

 

April, 2023

 

3.

 

Shri Vijay Kumar Srivastava

 

Part-Time Official Director

 

(Government Nominee

 

Director)

 

5th

 

April, 2023

 
4.

 

Shri Srikumar Ghose 
Choudhury 

 

Director (Finance) 

 

31st

 

May, 2023

 5.

Dr. Sanjay Shamrao Patil 

 

Non-official Independent 
Director 

2nd

 

June, 2023

 The policy relating to Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees are mentioned in Report 
on Corporate Governance attached to this report.
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17. BOARD MEETINGS

During this year, Five Board Meetings were held. 
The details of Board Meetings are given in Report 
on Corporate Governance, annexed to this Report.

18. AUDIT COMMITTEE DETAILS

Details of Board Level Audit Committee are given in 
the Report on Corporate Governance, annexed to 
this Report. Further, there has been no instance 
where the Board of Directors has not accepted 
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

19. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS 
REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER 
SECTION 143 (12)

During the year neither any incidence of fraud was 
happened in your Company nor any fraud reported 
by Statutory Auditor or Cost Auditor under Section 
143 (12) of Companies Act, 2013.

20. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF EXPLANATION 
OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON 
AUDITOR'S QUALIFICATION

The replies and explanations made by Management 
of BCPL have been separately attached with the 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
2022-23.

21. EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE DATE 
OF BALANCE SHEET

No material change and commitment occurred 
stafter the date of Balance Sheet i.e. 31  March 

2023, which affect the Financial Position of the 
BCPL.

22. SAFETY & SECURITY

At BCPL, it believes that human life is priceless, 
loss of which can neither be made up for by 
monetary compensations nor can its dedication 
and expertise be substituted. This inspires us to 
make the workplace safer for the employees of 
BCPL as well as for its stakeholders.

BCPL ' s  manufactur ing  un i t s  a re  hav ing 

commensurate Safety, Health & Environment (SHE) 

systems in place. During the year no incidence of 

fatalities and serious accidents has occurred in the 

Company. Some of the initiatives have been taken 

in your Factories/units to build and maintain safety 

and health culture at work place:

(a)  Proper house-keeping in plant as well as in  

Factory Premises is strictly maintained.

(b) Inspection/Refilling of Fire Extinguishers 

(Mechanical foam, Dry Chemical Powder & Carbon-

di-oxide type) is done as per safety standards.

(c)  Appropriate Personal Protective Equipment 

(PPE) are issued to the persons working in 

Production and Maintenance related job.

(d) Use of PPE is mandatory for contractors 

working at different sites in the factory premises.

(e)  Ultrasonic shell thickness test for all 

Compressors, Autoclaves, and Pressure vessels and 

inspection of Lift & Stacker are done as per 

Statutory Requirements/Regulations.

(f)  One segregated area has been created with 

proper shed and partition for the storage of 

different hazardous waste in segregated area. 

Agencies authorized by West Bengal Pollution 

Control Board collects the same for disposal.

(g)  Demarcated areas are being constructed for 

the storage of different hazardous waste in 

segregated areas. The authorized agency picks up 

the same for disposal.

(h)  CCTV Cameras has also been installed in all 

Offices, Factories and Depots of BCPL. 

(i)  Gate monitoring has been implemented to 

prohibit the trespassers around all units of BCPL.
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23. D I R E C TO R S '  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 

STATEMENT  

As required under Section 134 (3) (C) and 134 (5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors hereby 

confirm:

I)  That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, 

the applicable Accounting Standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation 

relating to material departures;  

ii)  That the Directors have selected such 

accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so 

as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the Company for the year ended on 
st

31  March 2023 and of the Profit and Loss of the 

Company for that period; 

iii)  That proper and sufficient care has been taken 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv)  That the Annual Accounts have been prepared 

on a going concern basis; 

v)  That the Directors have devised proper 

systems to ensure compliance with provisions 

of all applicable Laws and that such systems 

were adequate and operating effectively. 

24. COST AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 148 of Companies Act 2013, M/s 

Satyabrata Dasgupta & Co., Cost Accountants, was 

appointed as the Cost Auditor of the Company for 

the Financial Year 2022-23. The Cost Audit Report 

for the year 2022-23 will be filed with Central 

Government within the stipulated time. The Cost 

Audit Report for the year 2021-22 was filed with the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs within statutory time 

Limit.

25. AUDITORS

a)  The Statutory Auditor of the Company 

appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor   

General of India (C&AG) for the year 2022-23 is 

as under-

S.No  Name of the Firm Region 

1. M/s. S. K. Mallick 

& Co. (CA1807)  

 

Audit of Corporate Office,  

HO, Maniktala, Panihati, 

Delhi, Jaipur, Chennai, 

Hyderabad, Patna, Cuttack, 

Kanpur, Mumbai, and all 

India consolidation. 

b)  Secretarial Auditor

  Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Act 
and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, M/s Prateek Kohli & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretary, has been 
appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for F.Y.2022-2023 and the Secretarial 
Audit report for F.Y. 2022-2023 dated 
01.09.2023 was received from them. The 
replies/explanations /comments of the Board 
on the Secretarial Auditors comment in the 
Secretarial Audit Report for the F.Y. 2022-2023 
are attached to this report as Annexure.

26. DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

In accordance with the provisions of section 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 
information on Conservation of Energy, technology 
absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and 
outgo is detailed as under:

26.1 Energy Efficiency and its Conservation 
Energy conservation is the top most priority of 
every sector to narrow the gap between demand 
and supply and to counter energy crisps arising 
primarily on account of increasing demand of 
energy in India.

BCPL is also contributing in this regard in the 
following ways-
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a) Energy conservation measures taken: The 
Company makes continuous efforts towards 
conservation of energy in view of rising cost of 
ene rgy  and  keep ing  w i th  Company ' s 
commitment to be an energy efficient entity. 
Specific energy consumption per unit of 
production was monitored regularly at all 
manufacturing plants and corrective actions 
taken as required.

b) Steps taken by the Company or impact on 
conservation of energy:

● Energize the All Power Factor Correction (APFC) 
Panel all time in Auto Mode instead of manual 
mode to increase the Power Factor to the extent 
of more that 90%.

● Converting lights into LED for further reduction 
of energy consumption for lighting.

● For reducing the electrical energy consumption, 
use of various types of motor drives, HVAC 
drives, energy efficient devices etc. The use of 
variable-speed drives or inverters, control the 
flow of power into the motor, provides the 
opportunity to use power more effectively. 
Variable-speed drives can extend the lifetime of 
electric motors by allowing them to be start up 
slowly, rather than jolted into action with a 
surge of power up to full speed.

● The energy efficiency of our steam boilers (both 
1.2T & 3T) is enhanced by regular maintenance 
including leak identifications & repair, 
improving the insulation (on both the boiler and 
surrounding equipment), by reducing boiler 
blow-down, and by taking steps to improve heat 
recovery.

● Switch off any two out of the three 1750KVA 
transformers considering present load demand. 

● Taking all precautions for optimum utilization of 
energy in office like switching off lights/ fans/ 
air conditioners, whenever the employees are 
not in their chambers.

● Some of old Window Air Conditioner Units were 
replaced by new inverter type Split Air 
Condit ioners  for  reduct ion of  Energy 
Consumption.

● Installed Domestic Electric Meters in Residential 
Quarters at Maniktala and Panihati Factory in 
place of Industrial Meters. 

● Converted all Bore well water pump at 
Maniktala Factory and Panihati factory from 
manual operation to Automatic operation by 
water level controller, as a result reducing the 
Electricity cost as well as increasing pump life 
time.

26.2 Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of 
energy:

● Normal light bulbs and tube lights has been 
replaced with LEDs.

26.3  Technology Absorption

a) Research and Development: 

● We have introduced the use of Kyron T-314 in 
Norfloxacin Tabs IP 400mg for better dissolution 
result. Kyron T-314 and Kyron T-316 breaks the 
tablets into very smaller particles, and thus 
increases the effective surface area for the 
absorption of the active substances. Resultantly 
it increases the dissolution and bioavailability of 
the active substances.

● Both Kyron T-314 and Kyron T-316 were also 
inducted in Cefuroxime Axetil Tablets IP 250mg 
where slugging and direct compression method 
is adopted to achieve better dissolution of the 
coated Tablets( Organic solvent coating with 
Ready Mix powder)

b) Technology Absorption

● The benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: Consequent upon installation of 
new equipments in the factory premises the 
quality of production has been improved and 
cost has also been reduced.

● In case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year): The Company 
has not imported any technology in the last 
three years.
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27. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

During the year 2022-23, the Company did not 
make any transactions in foreign currency. 

28. Q U A L I T Y  M A N A G E M E N T:  I S O 
9001:2015 CERTIFICATION 

Being the first Indian Pharmaceutical Company, 
BCPL pursues continual improvement in the quality 
of its products, and performance leading to 
customer delight through commitment, innovation 
and team work of all employees. Your Company is 
an ISO 9001:2015 certified organization from 
Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) bearing  Quality 
Management system Certificate  No.QM/L-
5000329.7, valid till 01.07.2023. A surveillance 
audit was conducted by BIS Audit Team on 
26.02.2022 and approved for continuance of the 
Certificate as the Auditor was satisfied with the 
performance of Quality System of your Company as 
per ISO requirements.

BCPL conduct Quality Stability Tests for further 
assurance of quality, and these

Tests are conducted till the end of products shelf 
life on monthly basis.

29. S T A T U T O R Y  I N F O R M A T I O N 
REGARDING EMPLOYEES AS PER RULE 
5(2) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT 
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made there under shall not apply to Government 
Companies in terms of Ministry of Corporate affairs 

thnotification dated 05  June 2015.

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
( C S R )  A N D  S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y 
DEVELOPMENT

BCPL has adopted a CSR & Sustainability 

Development Policy, which was duly approved by 

Board Level CSR & Sustainability Development 

Committee, and Board of Directors in their 

respective Meetings. The details of CSR Activities 

conducted by the Company during the year 2022-23 

is mentioned in the Report on Corporate Social 

Responsibility and Sustainability Development, 

which has been placed at Annexure-III to this 

Report.

31. I N I T I AT I V E  U N D E R  “ S WA C H H 

BHARATABHIYAN”

Your Company is already producing various 

disinfectant and cleanliness products e.g. 

Bleaching Powder, Pheneol, Napthlene Balls, Klin 

Toilet etc. under its “Home Products Division” and 

supplying these products in various hospitals and 

Government Organisations and contributing in the 

campaign of “Swachh Bharat Abhiyan”. The 

products of Division III of your Company are 

r e c o m m e n d e d  b y  t h e  D e p a r t m e n t  o f 

Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of Chemicals & 

Fertilizers for Swachh Bharat Abhiyan. Further, 

BCPL also observed “Swachh Bharat Phakwada” in 

which all employees participated and cleaned the 

factory/ office premises and adjoining road/ area. 

32. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the 

requirement of attaching Form MGT-9 (Extract of 

Annual Return) with the Board's Report has been 

done away. The Form MGT-7 (Annual Return) has 

been uploaded on BCPL's official website: 

www.bengalchemicals.co.in.

33. COMPLIANCE OF LAWS

Your Company comply all the applicable Laws. A 

certificate of compliance of all Laws from all the 

HoDs related to their respective area/ field are to 

obtained on quarterly basis and a Report on 

Compliance of applicable Laws to the Company is 

to placed in the Board Meeting on quarterly basis 

for its review and directions. 
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34. COMPLIANCE OF GOVERNMENT 
G U I D E L I N E S ,  P O L I C I E S  A N D 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The guidelines and policies issued by Department 
of Public Enterprises and Department of 
Pharmaceut icals  and other  Government 
Authorities from time to time including Secretarial 
Standards were complied.

35. PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARNTEES 
OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loan/ provided any 
guarantee or security/ made any investment under 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the 

st
year ended 31  March 2023.

36. REPAYMENT OF LOANS

Govt .  o f  I nd i a  v i de  O rde r  Unde r  F.No 
53017/08/2017-PSU(Part) dt.09/9/2021 had given 
waiver of Government of India Loans along with 
Accrued Interest amounting to Rs.19371 Lakhs, 
hence, as on 31/03/2023 no Govt. loan was due for 
repayment. 

37. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ 
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Being a Central Public Sector Enterprise, all the 
Directors including Functional Directors are 
appointed by the Administrative Ministry. Managing 
Director is appointed in the 2007 scale of pay of Rs. 
65000-75000 and Director (Finance) is appointed in 
the 2007 scale of pay of Rs.51300-73000. Their 
terms and conditions are also fixed by the 
Administrative Ministry, i.e. Department of 
Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of Chemicals & 
Fertilizers.

38. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTOR U/S 149 OF COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013

The post of Non-Official (Independent) Director is 
vacant since 09/08/2019, a letter for appointment 

of Independent Director on the Board of BCPL had 
been sent to Administrative Ministry. 

39. DEPOSITS

The Company has not taken any deposit covered 
under or which are not in compliance with the 
requirement of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

40. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTY

The Company has not entered into any contracts or 
arrangements with related parties referred to in 
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

41. MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM 
ENTERPRISES

In line with the Public Procurement Policy for 
MSME's notified by Ministry of Small & Medium 
Enterprises, during the Financial Year 2022-23, 
your Company procured of Rs.5952 Lakh of Goods 
from Small and Medium Enterprises, out of Rs.7285 
Lakhs of procurement, which comes to around -
81.70 %. The detail of MSME procurement is 
mentioned below:

Detail of Procurement  
in 2022-23 

Value  Percentage  

Total Procurement  7285 100% 
Procurement from MSMEs 
(including SC/ ST & Women) 

5952 81.70% 

Further, nothing was due/ outstanding to the MSME Suppliers 
for the financial year ended on 31/03/2023.

42. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is an integral part of the 
Company's Strategic Planning. The Company has 
adequate internal financial controls in place. Your 
Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy 
duly approved by Board of Directors. A Risk 
Management  Commit tee  has  a l so  been 
constituted, which meets on regular intervals and 
place its compiled report to Audit Committee and 
Board in their meetings. 
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Method Details 

Print Media Display in Magazines, and Leading 
Newspapers 

Exhibitions Local Exhibitions  

44. OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

44.1 There was no change in the nature of business 
of the Company during the financial year 
2022-23.

44.2 During the year under review, no Order was 
issued under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 
2016.

44.3 Being a Government Company, BCPL is 
exempted from the statutory provisions 
relating to performance evaluation of 
Directors and disclosure in respect of 
evaluation mechanism in the Board's Report.

44.4 There was no rev is ion of  financia l 
statements/ reports during three financial 
years.

44.5 During the year, no changes were occurred in 
the capital structure of the Company.

44.6 Mater ia l  Order of  Judic ia l  Bodies/ 
Regulations:

Union Cabinet's Decision on Strategic Sale of BCPL: 

The status of Union Cabinet's Decision on Strategic 

Sale of BCPL is mentioned in point no. 7 of this 

Report.
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43. PUBLICITY & PUBLIC RELATION

Your Company has gained immense public visibility 
and brand promotion through following methods:

For and on behalf of the Board
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS REPORT

Your Directors would like to inform all the 
shareholders that your company has manufacturing 
facilities in Kolkata (Maniktala & Panihati) and 
Kanpur for manufacture of Drugs and Formulations, 
Industrial Chemicals and Cosmetics & Health Care 
products. The products of Company have been 
categorised into three divisions i.e. Division 
I- Industrial Chemicals, Division II- Drugs and 
Pharmaceuticals, and Division III- Home Products.  
The Management Discussion and Analysis is given 
hereunder:

Global Pharmaceutical Industry

The Pharmaceutical Industry is responsible for the 
development, production and marketing of 
medicines. The industry has contributed to 
significant improvements in patient well-being. 
India enjoys an important position in the global 
pharmaceuticals sector. India is the largest 
provider of generic drugs globally. Indian 
pharmaceutical industry is expected to reach ~US$ 
130 billion by 2030. India ranks 3rd worldwide for 
pharmaceutical production by volume and 14th by 
value. The country has an established domestic 
pharmaceutical industry, with a strong network of 
3,000 drug companies and ~10,500 manufacturing 
units.

Market Size

The Indian pharmaceutical sector is expected to 
grow at a CAGR of 22.4% in the near future and 
medical device market expected to grow US$25 
billion by 2025.  India is the second-largest 
contributor of global biotech and pharmaceutical 
workforce.  As of February 15, 2023, drugs and 
pharmaceuticals have recorded a positive growth 
of 2.97% between April 2022 - January2023.  The 
total market size of the Indian Pharma Industry is 
expected to reach US$ 130 billion by 2023.

Chemical Industry 

The Indian Chemical Industry is covering more than 
80,000 commercial products, India's chemical 
industry is extremely diversified and can be broadly 
classified into bulk chemicals, specialty chemicals, 
agrochemicals, petrochemicals, polymers, and 
fertilisers.

Globally, India is the fourth-largest producer of 
agrochemicals after the United States, Japan and 
China. India accounts for 16-18% of the world 
production of dyestuffs and dye intermediates. 
Indian colorants industry has emerged as a key 
player with a global market share of ~15%. The 
Indian chemicals industry stood at US$ 178 billion 
in 2019 and is expected to reach US$ 304 billion by 
2025 registering a CAGR of 9.3%. The demand for 
chemicals is expected to expand by 9% per annum 
by 2025. The chemical industry is expected to 
contribute US$ 383 billion to India's GDP by 2030.

1.  Growth Drivers of BCPL

●  Moder nization of following plants:

a)  Betalactum Block

b)  Ointment & External Solution Block

c)  Injectible Block

●  GMP Compliance & ISO 9001 Certified Company

●  Availability of BCPL's products in E-Commerce 
Platform

●  Opening of many Retail Stores in West Bengal 
and Mumbai

●  Optimum utilization of Manpower 

●  Extension of Vendor base

●  Introduction of brand extensions 

●  Shifted from manual operations to automation 
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● Implementation of Sales/ Distribution Manual

● Introduced Centralized System of Accounting, 
Payrol l  Payments,  Procurements,  B i l l 
Processing, Bi l l  Col lection, Biometric 
Attendance, Installation of CCTVs etc.

● Adjusted/ Recovered all advances 

2. PRODUCT PROFILE, SEGMENT-WISE 
AND PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

Presently, your Company is producing products 
under three categories i.e.

● Division-I: Industrial Chemicals 

● Division-II: Pharmaceuticals

● Division-III: Home Product 

Pharmaceutical  Div is ion is  the segment 
contributing highest to the turnover of the 
Company and this segment has contributed 64% to 
the total turnover during 2022-23 as compared to 
45% during the previous year 2021-22. The second 
largest segment has been Home Products 
contributing 34% to the total turnover during 2022-
23. Segment-wise analysis of the operations of the 
Company is given below: 

Sl. 
No

 Products 
Segment

 2022-23 2021-22 

  Turnover %  Turnover %  

1 Pharmaceuti
cals 

6507 64 2842 45 

2
 

Cosmetic & 
Home 
Products

 

3452
 

34
 

3173
 

51
 

3
 

Chemicals
 

197
 

2
 

222
 

4
 

 
Total

 
10156

 
100

 
6237

 
100

 

●  Strong image of the brand and quality products 
like Pheneol, Naphthalene Balls, Bleaching 
Powder, Aqua Ptychotis, Cantharidine (Hair oil) 
etc.

●  State of the art manufacturing facility of life 
saving medicines 

●  Large Distribution Network of Depots, C&FAs 
and Retail Stores covering the entire Country.

●  Production is being made strictly as per Drug 
Control and BIS Guidelines & strict quality 
control.

●  Zero Labour Unrest while maintaining 
harmonious industrial relations in the Company 
and inculcating good work culture amongst the 
employees.

(ii)  Weaknesses/Risk/Concern

●  Low key product promotion

●  Manpower/field force absence to promote 
products vis a vis competition

●  Weak distribution channel/inability to have 
reach in all stations/locations

●  Not ensured/availability of products during 
high demand periods

●  Inability to offer all the items of PPP 
Formulations

●  Inability to match Grade 4 standard in Alum 
and grade 1 standard in Pheneol

●  Absence of integrated IT process and systems

●  Vintage Infrastructure & manufacturing 
process in some areas/products

(iii) Opportunities

●  Life style and cleanliness is the essence.

●  Surge in use of cleaning products especially 
due to  post Covid 19 scenario

●  Ever growing India Pharma Market (IPM)

●  Product improvement / New introductions

●  High demand of Ferric alum, Phenyl, 
Napthalene, Bleaching Powder and other 
Division III products.

3.  SWOT ANALYSIS

(i)  Strengths

●  BCPL is one of the renowned PSUs, being the 
first Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Company of 
India, founded by the eminent scientist 
Acharya Prafulla Chandra Ray.

●  Traditionally strong FMCG/Cleaning Brands
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●  Implementation of Grade IV Alum project 
facility. 

(iv) Threats

●  Intense competitions for FMCG Brands 
especially from the Local Brands

●  Strong noise level of competition especially 
ITC

●  Working only on PPP/(NPPA) model for 
Pharmaceuticals Brands 

●  API/ Excipients Manufacturer's lack of interest 
for direct supply  in BCPL

●  Counterfeit products and lack of consumer 
awareness to desist from buying the same

4.  RISK AND CONCERN

●  BCPL has in place a Board approved Risk 
Management Policy which provides overall 
framework for Enterprise Risk Management in 
the company. In pursuance with Corporate 
Governance Guidelines issued by DPE, BCPL has 
in place a 'Risk Management Committee' with 
assigned responsibility of reviewing the 
company's Risk Governance structure, Risk 
Assessment & Risk Management framework, 
Guidelines, Policies and Processes. Besides 
this,  Risk Management Committee is 
responsible for adopting & implementing the 
risk management framework and leading the 
risk management initiative across the 
company. 

  As per provisions of the Risk Management 
Policy, key risks being faced by the company 
are analyzed in detail by the Risk Management 
Committees in its quarterly meetings, and the 
compiled report alongwith proceedings of such 
meeting submitted to the Audit Committee and 
Board for their review and suggestions.

5. OUTLOOK 

Your Company has planned increase Pharma 
products especially in Chronic Therapy Segments 
like Arthiritis, Hypertension, Hyperglycemia, and 

Dyslipidemia. The Company wants to diversify its 
presence in complication management of Chronic 
Disorders and lifestyle management which is need 
of the present generation. 

Further, the Company plans to bring in newer 
products in Hygiene and cleaning needs of both 
domestic and industrial segments. 

6.  INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND 
THEIR ADEQUACY 

For the efficient governance, the Internal Control 
Systems and their adequacy are the top most 
priority. BCPL has an Internal Financial Control 
System and a report on Internal Financial Control 
System is put up in the Board Meeting of the 
Company periodically. Due to the Internal Financial 
Control System, the Company can efficiently 
prevent manipulations, mistakes and fraudulent 
actions. 

7.  D I S C U S S I O N  O N  F I N A N C I A L 
PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO THE 
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

During the year 2022-23, your Company achieved a 
turnover of Rs.10156 Lakh compared to previous 
year turnover of Rs.6237 Lakh and also reported 
Net Profit of Rs.1019 Lakh compared to Net Profit of 
Rs.747 Lakh of previous year 2021-22. Your 
Company has reported net profit consecutively for 
six years and confident of achieving profit in the 
future years also.

8.  MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN 
RESOURCE, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF THE 
PEOPLE EMPLOYED

The Company provides relevant trainings time to 
time its employees and update their skills and 
abilities for its growth and as well as increase the 
quantity and quality of production, marketing and 
accounting activities.

30



42  ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23ND

BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LTD., KOLKATA

(A Government of India Enterprise)

Industrial relations remained peaceful and 
conduc i ve  dur ing  the  year.  Emp loyees 
complemented efforts of the Management in 
deve lop ing  and  sus ta in ing  an  enab l ing 
performance culture in the organization. 
Employees' views are also taken into consideration 
from time to time while finalizing various Policies 
of the Company.

9.  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND 
CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGICAL 
CONSERVATION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
CONSERVATION 

(i)  Environmental Protection & Conservation:
To adhere to the need of  Environment 
Protection and Conservation, due importance 
has been given on planting trees in and around 
the factory premises, use of environment 
friendly raw material, installation of energy 
efficient lighting system, utilization of natural 
light. Employees are sensitized towards 
reduction in energy consumption by switching 
off electrical appliances like lights, fans, 
computers when they are not in use.

(ii) Technological Conservation:

  As a part of Technological Conservation BCPL 
has implemented Bar Coding & QR Coding in 
secondary and tertiary packages of some more 
products. The main advantage of this 
technology   is better traceability of the 
product in warehouse/stock points. 

(iii) Foreign exchange conservation:

  During the year 2022-23, the Company did not 
made any transactions in foreign currency.  

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussion and 
Analysis report describing the Company's 
objectives, projections and expectations may be 
forward looking statements within the meaning of 
applicable Laws and Regulations. Actual results 
might differ substantially or materially from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors that could 
make a difference to the Company's operation 
include global and Indian demand-supply 
conditions and finished goods prices, competitors' 
pricing in the Company's principal markets, 
changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, 
and economic conditions in India. 

For and on behalf of the Board

S. GHOSE CHOUDHURY
Director(Finance)
DIN:10194519

NIRJA SARAF
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973 

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26/09/2023

Sd/- Sd/-
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE COMPANY'S  PHILOSOPHY ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company firmly believes that Good Corporate 

Governance generates value on a sustainable basis 

for all stakeholders. Corporate Governance is 

primarily concerned with transparency, full 

disclosure of material facts, independence of 

Board, and fair play with all the stakeholders. The 

Company is committed to comply with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, other Laws 

applicable to the Company, Guidelines on 

Corporate Governance issued by Department of 

Public Enterprises for CPSEs, and Secretarial 

Standards. 

1.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1. Composition of the Board

   All the Directors on the Board of BCPL are 

appointed by the President of India through 

Administrative Ministry (i.e. Department of 

Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of Chemicals and 

Fertilizers). Presently two Directors are in 

position viz. Managing Director (Additional 

Charge), and one Part-Time Official Director 

[Government nominee]. 

1.2. Details of the composition of the Board of 

Directors, Category of the Director,  

Attendance at the Board meeting, and 

Annual General Meeting (AGM), and other 

Directorships held during the year 2022-23 

are given below:

Shri Parveen Kumar
Deputy Secretary,  
Ministry of Chemicals 
& and Fertilizers, 
Department of 
Pharmaceutical
DIN No.:08764769

Managing 
Director 

(Additional 
Charge)**

Director

Name of 
Directors Category 

(i) Managing Director (Additional Charge) / Whole 
Time/ Functional Directors  

Mrs.Nirja 
Saraf 
DIN: 
06901973 

  5/5 NA    15/10/20

Board 
Meetings 
attended

st41  
AGM 

attended

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
Companies 
(excluding 

BCPL)

4 (HAL, 
RDPL, 

MSDPL, 
MAPL)***

Tenure
w.e.f

(ii) Government Nominees/Part-Time Official Directors

Yes Nil
10/06/20 

to
04/04/23

**Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government of India vide 

thOrder dated 13  October, 2020 assigned the 
additional charge of Managing Director of BCPL to 
Ms. Nirja Saraf, Managing Director of Hindustan 

th
Antibiotics Limited w.e.f. 15  October, 2020 for an 
initial period of 3 months and the said Additional 

thCharges has been extended upto  30  September 
2023 by Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry 
of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government of India.

*** Abbreviations used are:

● HAL- Hindustan Antibiotics Limited

● RDPL- Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals
 Limited 

● M S D P L -  M a h a r a s h t r a  S t a t e  D r u g s  &
 Pharmaceuticals Limited

● MAPL- Manipur Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals 
 Limited 
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Notes:

The details of Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel 
appointed or have resigned during the year 2022-
23, and thereafter till the date of this report is 
mentioned below:

Appointments/Cessations:

Following changes took place in the Directorship 
during the year during the Year 2022-23 and 
thereafter till the date of this report:

1. Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
thChemicals & Fertilizers, vide Order dated 13  

October, 2020 has assigned the additional 
charge of Managing Director of BCPL to Ms Nirja 
Saraf, Managing Director of Hindustan 

thAntibiotics Limited w.e.f. 15  October, 2020 for 
an initial period of 3 months, which has been 

thextended time to time upto 30  September, 
2023.

2. Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemical & Fertilizers vide Order No. 

th56012/01/2020-PSU dated 13  April, 2023 has 
appointed Shri Srikumar Ghose Choudhury 
Director (Finance) of Bengal Chemicals & 
Pharmaceuticals Ltd.(BCPL).  Shri Srikumar 
Ghose Choudhury, Director (Finance) joined 

stBCPL on 31  May, 2023.

3. Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemical & Ferti l izers vide Order No 

th35011/01/2016-PSU dated 5  April, 2023 has 
nominated Shri Vijay Kumar Srivastava, Dy. 
Secretary, Department of Pharmaceuticals as 
Part-Time Official (Government Nominee) 
Director on the Board of BCPL in lieu of Shri 
Parveen Kumar, Dy. Secretary.

4. Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemical & Fertilizers vide Order under F.No.3-

nd
34012/1/2021-PSU dated 2  June, 2023 has 
appointed Dr. Sanjay Shamrao Patil as Non-
official Independent Director on the Board of 
Director.

BRIEF RESUME OF DIRECTORS:

(a)  MS. NIRJA SARAF

  Managing Director (Additional Charge)

  DIN: 06901973

Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
th

Chemicals & Fertilizers vide its letter dated 13  

October, 2020 has assigned Ms. Nirja Saraf with 

Additional Charge of Managing Director Bengal 

Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited. Ms. Nirja 

Saraf is a LLB, MBA, and FCS. She has an experience 

of 33 Years in various reputed Organisations and 

CPSEs. Ms. Nirja Saraf has worked in Bata India 

Limited, Atma Steels, Ahmedabad Stock Exchange, 

and Braithwaite & Co Limited. Presently, She is the 

Managing Director of Hindustan Antibiotics Limited 

and also holding the Additional Charge of Managing 

Director of RDPL and BCPL.

The Administrative Ministry had also assigned Ms. 

Nirja Saraf with Additional Charge of Managing 

D i r e c t o r  o f  K a r n a t a k a  A n t i b i o t i c s  & 

Pharmaceuticals Limited from 01/02/2018 to 

31/07/2019. She independently handled 

'OXYTOCIN' project of KAPL, a prestigious and 

challenging project which was directly monitored 

by PMO and Health Ministry. She was instrumental 

in ensuring the availability of 'OXYTOCIN' Injection 

across the Country as part of the Govt's Directive. 

Pan India supply was personally monitored by her 

since single disruption could have caused death to 

the delivering mother. Under her leadership KAPL 

manufactured 20 Million units of 'OXYTOCIN' in 2 

months. It was a wonderful achievement and 

challenge of supply chain and cold chain 

management.

(b) SHRI PARVEEN KUMAR

  Part-Time Official Director
  Government Nominee Director
  DIN: 08764769
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  Department of Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemicals & Fertilizers vide its letter dated 

th10  June, 2020 has appointed Shri Parveen 
Kumar, Deputy Secretary, Department of 
Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of Chemicals & 
Fertilizers, Government of India as Part-Time 
Official Director (Government Nominee 
D i r e c t o r )  o f  B e n g a l  C h e m i c a l s  & 
Pharmaceuticals Limited. Shri Parveen Kumar 
is a B.A (Hons.) English, M.A (Political Science), 
and L.L.B. Shri Parveen Kumar has experience 
of 28 years in the Government Sector. He has 
b e e n  w o r k i n g  i n  D e p a r t m e n t  o f 
Pharmaceuticals since October, 2016 and has 
experience of work relating to promotion of 
Medical Devices Industry, National Institute of 
Pharmaceuticals Education and Research 
(NIPERs) and input out-put norms for import 
l i c e n s i n g  b e s i d e s  e s t a b l i s h m e n t  & 
administration of the Department. Earlier Shri 
Parveen Kumar has worked in Ministry of 
Environment & Forest and climate change and 
Ministry of Defence.

1.3 Board Procedure

  The Board of Directors play primary role in 
ensuring Good Governance and functioning of 
the Company. The meetings of the Board are 
convened by giving appropriate notice along 
with agenda papers. The Board Meetings are 
normally held at the Company's Registered 
Office in Kolkata and in compliance with the 
provisions of The Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) Amendment, Rules 2021 
dt. 15th June, 2021 issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs all the Board and Board Level 
Committee Meetings were held through Video 
Conferencing. The Board meets at regular 
intervals to discuss the physical and financial 
progress of the Company. The agenda notes for 
the meeting are prepared and signed by the 
concerned HoD on the approval of Managing 
Director before being sent to all the Directors. 
The decisions are taken by the Board of 

Directors after discussions. The minutes of the 
proceedings of each Board Meeting are entered 
in the Minutes Book. The minutes of each Board 
Meeting are also submitted in the next 
meeting. The minutes of Committee of the 
Board are also placed to the Board for its 
information. The Board Members have 
complete access to all information of the 
Company.

1.4 Information Placed Before the Board of 
Director 

  The information under the following heads is 
usually presented to the Board of Directors of 
BCPL as part of the agenda papers of Board 
Meetings:

●  Annual operating plans and budget and 
updates.

●  Financial Results on quarterly basis

●  Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and 
other Committees of the Board.

●  Significant labour problems and their proposed 
solutions. Any significant development in 
Human Resources/ Industrial Relations Front 
l i k e  s i g n i n g  o f  w a g e  a g r e e m e n t , 
implementation of Voluntary Retirement 
Scheme.

●  Sale of Material nature of investments, 
subsidiaries, assets, which is not in normal 
course of business. 

●  Action Taken Report on decisions taken by the 
Board.

●  Quarterly report on compliance of applicable 
laws.

●  Show cause, demand prosecution notices and 
penalty notices which are materially 
important.

●  Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous 
occurrences, any material effluent or pollution 
problems.
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●  Any issue, which involves possible public or 
product liability claims of substantial nature, 
including any judgment or order which, may 
have passed strictures on the conduct of the 
Company or taken an adverse view regarding 
another enterprise that can have negative 
implications on the Company.

●  Status of Internal Financial Control System in 
the Company.

●  Status implementation of Risk Management 
Policy.

●  Review of Vigilance work on half yearly basis

●  Any other information required to be 
presented to the Board either for information 
or approval.

1.5 Number of Board Meetings:

  During the year 2022-23, five meetings of the 
Board of Directors were held, the details of 
which are given below:

SI. No. Date of 
Meeting 

Board 
Strength 

No. of 
Directors 
Present 

1. 11/05/2022 2 2 
2. 21/07/2022 2 2 
3. 28/09/2022 2 2 
4. 25/11/2022 2 2 
5. 16/02/2023 2 2 

1.6 Appointment of Directors

  The appointment of all Directors including 
part-time directors (Government Nominee 
Directors, Independent Directors) is done by 
The President of India through Administrative 
Ministry i.e. Department of Pharmaceuticals, 
Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers. Further, as 

th
per notification no. “G.S.R.,163(E)” dated 5  
June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the Section 152(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 shall not apply to the Government 
Companies in which the entire paid up share 
capital is held by the Central Government, or 
by any State Government or by the Central 
Government  and one or  more State 
Governments.

  Since, the entire share capital of Bengal 
Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited is held 
by the President of India through Ministry of 
Chemicals & Fertilizers, Department of 
Pharmaceuticals,  the Sect ion 152(6) 
(Retirement of Director by Rotation) of the 
Companies Act 2013 does not apply to the 
BCPL.

2.  COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

2.1 Audit Committee

  The Audit Committee of the Company has been 
constituted by the Board with powers and role 
defined in accordance with DPE Guidelines on 
Corporate Governance and Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee is 
chaired by the Part-Time Official Director 
(Government Nominee Director) of the 
Company. During the year 2022-23, the Audit 

thCommittee had five meetings on 11  May 2022, 
st th th21  July 2022, 28  September 2022, 25  

thNovember, 2022 and 16  February 2023.

(i)   The attendance details are as under-

Member

 No. of Meetings 
held during their 
respective tenure 

No. of 
Meetings 
attended 

Shri Parveen Kumar  

Part-Time Official Director  
 

Chairman, Audit Committee  5
 

5
 

Ms Nirja Saraf
 

Managing Director (Addl Charge) 
 

 
 Member, Audit Committee  

 5
 

5
 

(ii) Composition of Audit Committee is as 
under:

1   Shri Parveen Kumar

2   Ms Nirja Saraf

Govt. Nominee 
Director

Managing Director
(Addl Charge)

Chairman 
(w.e.f. 01/07/2020)

Member
(w.e.f. 16/10/2020)
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(iii) Terms of Reference of Audit   Committee

  The terms of reference of Audit Committee are 
in terms of Companies Act 2013, and DPE 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance. 

2.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

  Nomination and Remuneration committee has 
been constituted pursuant to DPE Guidelines 
on Corporate Governance for deciding the 
annual bonus/variable pay pool and policy for 
its distribution across executives and non-
unionized supervisors. The Committee has 
been reconstituted with the following 
members:

1   Shri Parveen Kumar

2   Ms Nirja Saraf

Govt. Nominee 
Director

Managing Director
(Addl Charge)

Chairman 
(w.e.f. 01/07/2020)

Member
(w.e.f. 16/10/2020)

  During the year 2022-23, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee had one meeting on 

th11  May, 2022. All the Committee members 
including Chairman were present in the 
meeting.

2.3 Corporate  Soc ia l  Respons ib i l i ty  And 
Sustainability Committee

  The Company had constituted Board Level 
Corporate  Soc ia l  Respons ib i l i ty  and 
Sustainability Development Committee with 
the following members: 

1   Shri Parveen Kumar

2   Ms Nirja Saraf

Govt. Nominee 
Director

Managing Director
(Addl Charge)

Chairman 
(w.e.f. 01/07/2020)

Member
(w.e.f. 16/10/2020)

3. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The shareholding pattern of the company as on 
st

31  March 2023 was as under:

Sl. 
No Name of Shareholder 

No. of Shares  
held (Face Value 

Rs.1000 each) 

1 The President of India 769601 

2 Shri Parveen Kumar 

Director, Deptt. of 
Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemicals & Fertilizers

 

2 

3
 

Shri SU Ansari
 

Under Secretary, Deptt. of 
Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of 
Chemicals & Fertilizers

 

1
 

 
Total

 
769604

 

4. POLICY ON TRAINING OF BOARD 
MEMBERS

BCPL has formulated Policy on Training of Board 
Members to facilitate the understanding of the 
business and industry in which the Company is 
engaged including risk profile of the business, to 
familiarize all the new Directors with their role, 
responsibilities, duties and functions in the 
governance of the Company and to make Directors 
aware about the Corporate Governance, Business 
Ethics, Code of Conduct, etc. which they are 
required to comply with. 

5.  WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In pursuance of the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines issued by DPE, and provisions of Section 
177 of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 
of BCPL has approved the Whistle Blower Policy in 

rdits Meeting held on 23  September 2016. The 
Whistle Blower Policy of BCPL has also given to all 
HoDs, Factory In-charges, and also published on 
the official website of Company. As per this Policy, a 
“Screening Committee” with the following 
members has also been constituted:

 During the year 2022-23, CSR & Sustainability 

Development Committee had two meetings on 
th th16  February, 2023 and 11  May 2022. All the 

Committee members including Chairman were 

present in the meeting.
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1.
 

Managing Director/ Head of Organisation 
 

Chairman
 2.

 
Director (Finance)

  
Member

 
3.

 
HOD (HR)

 
Member

 
4. HOD (Finance) Member 
5. HOD (Marketing) Member 

6.  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

6.1 The details of the last three Annual General 
Meetings (AGM) of the Company are given 
below:-

AGM Financial Year Date and Time of AGM 

st41   2021-22 
25th November, 2022 

at 15:00 Hrs. Through Video 
Conferencing 

40th  2020-21 
28th September 2021 

at 13:00 Hrs. Through Video 
Conferencing 

39th  2019-20
 

20th July 2020
 

at 11:30 Hrs. Through Video 
Conferencing

 

stNotice of 41  Annual General Meeting for the financial year 
2021-22 contains details about day, date, time and venue of the AGM.

6.2  Details of Special Resolutions passed at last 
three AGMs-

AGM Financial Year 
Details of Special 
Resolution passed 

41st  2021-22 NIL 
40th  2020-21 NIL 
39th  2019-20 NIL 

7.  RIGHT TO INFORMATION (RTI)

The provisions laid down under RTI Act, 2005 have 

been complied with. The Company has appointed 

its Deputy Manager level official as Public 

Information Officer (PIO). An Assistant General 

Manager of the Company is the Appellate Authority 

in accordance with the RTI Act. The details of RTI 

applications received and disposed off during the 

year 2022-23 are as under:

8.  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH 

SHAREHOLDERS

Bilingual Annual Report (i.e. Hindi & English) and 

Annual Return as filed with Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs are posted on the website of the Company 

along with other relevant information. Annual 

Reports also being sent to all shareholders in 

physical form.

9.  AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS

Replies to Statutory Auditor observations/ 

qualifications on Accounts, and/or replies on the 

comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of 

India would be attached as addendum to the 

Directors' Report.

10. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down the Code of Business 

Conduct and Ethics for the Board members and 

Senior Management of the Company. 

11. DISCLOSURES

11.1 Details of the remuneration paid to the 
Directors during the year 2022-23 are as 
under:

   Functional/ Whole-time Directors/KMP:

1  
 

Nil 

2 No. of RTI applications received during the  
year 2022-23 

16 

3 No. of RTI applications disposed-off during the  
year 2022-23 

16 

4 No. of RTI applications pending as on  
31st March 2023 

Nil 

5 No. of RTI applications referred to Appellate 
Authority during the year 2022-23 

Nil 

No. of RTI Applications Pending as on 
st1  April 2022

 Salary Benefits Total 

Ms Nirja Saraf 

Managing Director 

(Additional Charge) 

Nil Nil Nil 

Name of Functional Director
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11.2  All the directors are appointed by the 
President of India through Department of 
Pharmaceuticals, Ministry of Chemicals and 
Fertilizers, Government of India in the fixed 
pay scales. Their other terms and conditions 
of appointment are also fixed by the 
Department of Pharmaceuticals. 

11.3  Apart from the remuneration to Directors as 
per the terms and conditions of their 
appointment and entitled sitting fee to 
Independent Directors, none of the Directors 
have any material or pecuniary relationship 
with the Company which can affect their 
independence of judgment.

11.4  During the year, there were no materially 
significant related party transactions that 
might have potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large. Details of 
the related Party transactions as per 
Accounting Standard 18 form part of the 
Notes to the Accounts. Further, Form AOC-2 is 
also attached as Annexure to this Report.

11.5  There has been no instance of any penalty or 
strictures imposed by any statutory body.

11.6  The Company is complying with all the 
requirements of the Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance for CPSEs issued by the DPE. 

11.7  Company's accounting procedures comply 
with the Accounting Standards adopted by 
concerned regulatory authority from time to 
time.

11.8  The detail of Risk Management is described in
Directors' Report.

11.9  Company complies with all the Presidential 
Directives issued by the Central Government 
from time to time. No Presidential Directives 
was received during the last three years.

11.10 During the year, no expenditure is debited to 
the books and accounts which are not for the 
purpose of business and no expenses which 
are of personal nature have been incurred for 
the Board of Directors and Top Management. 

11.11 Administrative expenses as a percentage of 
total income has been 25.46% in 2022-23, 
compared to 32.17% in 2021-22. Finance 
Costs/ Expenses as a percentage of Total 
Expenses has been 0.03% in 2022-23 
compared to 0.05% in 2021-22. 

11.12 W e b s i t e  o f  t h e  c o m p a n y 
www.bengalchemicals.co.in displays the official 
news release of the company like Annual 
Report, tenders, and career opportunities 
etc.

11.13 There is no deviation from the prescribed 
Accounting Standards in the financial 
statements of the Company for the year 
2022-23. 

12. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE  

This Report duly complies with the applicable 
requirements of Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance for CPSEs and covers all the applicable 
suggested items mentioned in Annexure-VII of the 
Guidelines. The report on compliance with the 
Corporate Governance requirements prescribed by 
DPE is also sent to Administrative Ministry. The 
certificate obtained from Practicing Company 
Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of 
guidelines of Corporate Governance of CPSEs has 
been annexed to the Report.

For and on behalf of the Board

S. GHOSE CHOUDHURY
Director(Finance)
DIN:10194519

NIRJA SARAF
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973 

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26/09/2023

Sd/- Sd/-
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Corporate Social Responsibility & 
Sustainable Development 

1. A brief Outline of Company`s CSR 

policy

The philosophy of Corporate Social Responsibility 

as practiced by Bengal Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals 

Limited is a legacy of its founder Late Acharya 

Prafulla Chandra Ray. The Company is committed 

to create a positive and lasting social impact by 

mutual trust and respect by raising the standard of 

living of the people in and around the factories. 

The Company carries out its CSR initiatives in a 

wide range of areas specified under Schedule VII of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

CSR Policy of BCPL provides for welfare measures 

for community at large and contribution to society 

at large by way of social & cultural development, 

and being sensitive towards the need of socially 

and economically underprivileged class. 

CSR Vision

“To actively contribute to the social and economic 

development of the communities in which we 

operate. In so doing build a better, sustainable way 

of life for the weaker sections of society, and also 

build a socially responsible image of BCPL as a 

corporate entity”.

CSR Objective

The objectives of BCPL's CSR Policy are:

● Adherence to the ethical and responsible 

behaviour of a Company towards the community 

and society and undertakes the Programmes for 

welfare & sustainable development of the 

community at large;

● To define CSR projects or programs which BCPL 

plans to undertake and which fall within the 

purview of the Companies Act 2013, the 

Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 and the 

prevailing DPE Guidelines;

● Modalities of execution of such CSR projects or 

programs;

● Monitoring process of such CSR projects or 

programs;

● To make the stakeholders aware about CSR 

practices in BCPL

● To work keeping in mind the larger objective of 

sustainable development in conduct of business 

and in pursuit of CSR agenda.

Policy of the Company

The Company has formulated Corporate Social 

Responsibility and Sustainability Development 

Policy and the same is available on the website of 

the Company.

Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee:

As on 31.03.2023, the CSR Committee consists of 

two Directors as as furnished below:

 
 
 Sl. 

No 

 
 
 Name of 

Director 

 
 
 Designation/ 

Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings 

of CSR 
Committee 

held 
during the 

year 

Number of 
meetings 

CSR 
Committee 
attended 

during the 
year 

1 Ms. Nirja 
Saraf

              

Managing 
Director 

2 2

2 

 

Shri Parveen 
Kumar 

Govt. 
Nominee 
Director 

2 2
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2.  The Composition of the CSR Committee and 

CSR Policy are  disclosed on the website of the 

Company i.e. www.bengalchemicals.co.in

3.  The executive summary along with web -link(s) 

of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried 

out in pursuance of sub-rule(3) of Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility 

P o l i c y )  R u l e s ,  2 0 1 4  - 

Not applicable.

4.  Average net profit of the company as per section 

135(5) : 

(a)  The average net profit for the last three 

financial years for the purpose of computation 

of CSR allocation for F.Y. 2022-2023 is 

Rs.887.33 Lakh.

(b)  Two percent of average net profit of the 

company as per section 135(5) :Rs.17.75 Lakh.

(c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years Rs.10.61 Lakh.      

(d)  Amount required to be set off for the financial 

year, if any – NIL.

(e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2022-

23 -Rs.28.36 Lakh.

5. (a)                                     Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing 

Project and other than Ongoing Project) - 

Rs.28.36Lakh /-

 (b)      Amount spent in Administrative Overhead 

–Nil

(c)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if 

applicable:- Nil

(d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year 

Rs.28.36 Lakh.

 

 

 
 

 

       
     

f)  Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

(e)   Amount(s) of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year 2022-23
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6. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

7. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year – No

8. In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three 

financial year as per Section 135(5), the Company shall provide the reason for not spending the amount 

 The Company has allocated the entire CSR fund of Rs.17.75 Lakh of FY 2022-23 against CSR Projects. An 

amount of Rs.28.36 Lakh (including unspent balance of Rs.10.61 lakh of 2021-22) was spent within FY 

2022-23 as Section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules.

For and on behalf of the Board

    S. GHOSE CHOUDHURY
    Director(Finance)
    DIN:10194519

            
 NIRJA SARAF

Managing Director
DIN: 06901973                    

 

    Place: Kolkata 
    Date: 26/09/2023

Sd/- Sd/-
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CERTIFICATION/DECLARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Bengal Chemicals & 
stPharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31  March 2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and 

belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

(iii) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year 2022-23 which are fraudulent, illegal of the Company's Code of Conduct;

(iv) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 

financial reporting, and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in 

the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or 

proposed to be taken to rectify the same;

(v)  We have indicated to the auditors and Audit Committee:

a)  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year 2022-23; 

b)  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year 2022-23 and the same have been disclosed 

in the notes to the financial statements; 

c)  Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 

the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system 

over financial reporting. 

For and on behalf of the Board

S. GHOSE CHOUDHURY
Director (Finance)
DIN:10194519

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2023

NIRJA SARAF
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973

Sd/- Sd/-
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with Related 

Parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 

length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1 

2 

S. GHOSE CHOUDHURY
Director (Finance)
DIN:10194519

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2023

Form No. AOC-2

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions 
not at arm’s length basis 

No Related Party Transactions was made 
during the year 2022

Details of material contracts or arrangement or 
transactions at arm’s length basis  

No Related Party Transaction 
during the Year 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

-23  

was made 
-23  

NIRJA SARAF
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973

Sd/- Sd/-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF 

BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial 

s t a t e m e n t s  B E N G A L  C H E M I C A L S  & 

PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED (“the Company”), 
st which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 

2023 and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash 

Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes 

to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (herein after referred to 

as “Financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, 

except for the possible effects  of the matter 

described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section 

of our report, the aforesaid Financial statements 

give the information required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of 
st

the Company as at 31  March, 2023 and its profit 

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion Property, 

Plant & Equipments

The records of Property, Plant & Equipment 

maintained by the Company in its Asset Register in 

MS Excel is found to be inadequate as regards the 

specific location of the assets, OEM/Capacity etc. 

asset tagging and particulars as to impairment and 

sale/disposal.  Discrepancies in physical 

verification could not be ascertained and 

addressed in the absence of asset tagging 

information. Also, capital work-in-progress (CWIP) 

of ₹ 2527.31 lakhs (as per Note 10 of Financial 

Statements) as on 31.03.2023 has not been 

included in the Asset Register, considering that 

such balance has been lying as such for last 10 years 

and diminution in value of the CWIP components 

due to obsolescence/unuse could not be 

ascertained. Further, Company's land details as per 

the Asset Register and related land documents 

signify that some of the records are very old and 

could not be produced for verification.

Due to issues covered under above clauses the 

effect of the same in the profit of current year is 

not ascertainable.

Trade Receivable and other Current 

Assets.

No reconciliation of trade receivable with 

respective customers has been done by the 

Company with reference to dues from Government 

d e p a r t m e n t s  /  c u s t o m e r s .  A  s u m  o f                

₹1136.44 lacs is due from Government department 

beyond three years. The effect of adjustment 

arising from such reconciliation and possible loss, if 

any, that may arise on account of non-recovery of 

such dues is not ascertained. Company has not 

provided for such probable loss by making 

provisions in the books.  Accordingly, we are unable 

to express our opinion on likely impact of the same 

on current year's profit.

Chartered Accountants 
S K MALLICK & CO.
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Loans and Advances

The balance of accounts of parties/vendors under 

the head Loans & Advances as well as debit 

balances of Project Creditors are subject to 

confirmation and adjustments necessary upon 

reconciliation. This includes ₹ 120.62 Lacs 

advances paid to Project Creditors at Maniktala 

Factory lying unadjusted for several years. Further 

₹32.00 lacs are receivable from a government 

company under Liquidation. The effect of 

adjustment arising from such reconciliation and 

possible losses due to non-adjustment of such dues 

is not ascertained. Due to the same we are unable 

to express our opinion on likely impact of the same 

on current year's profit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the financial statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 

India in terms of Code of Ethics issued by the 

institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No 7.2 of Schedule to 

the Financial Statements, which describes non-

provision of Municipal Tax pending litigation for the 

current year. Our opinion is not modified in respect 

of this matter.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for 

the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information 

included in the Company's Annual Report, but does 

not include financial statements and auditor's 

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statement does not 

cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether 

other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materiality misstated. If, 

based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Management and Board of Directors 

Responsibilities for the Financial 

Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors 

are responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 

respect to the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs, profit/loss and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including 

the Accounting Standards specified under Section 

Chartered Accountants 
S K MALLICK & CO.
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133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation 

and presentation of the financial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management 

is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

Tha Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the company's financial reporting 

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of 

the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken 

on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 

exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 

also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the company 

has adequate internal financial controls system in 

place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by 
management and Board of Directors. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
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based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

content of the Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with 

governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance 

with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may 

reasonab ly  be  thought  to  bear  on  our 

independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements.

1.   As required by the Companies (Auditor's 

Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-

section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 

in the “Annexure A” a statement on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order.

2.   The compliance with directions of C&AG u/s 

143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is stated in 

the “Annexure B” attached to this report.

3.   As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we 

report that: 

I.   We have sought and except for the effects / 

possible effects of the matter described in the 

Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph obtained 

all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

ii.  Except for the effects / possible effects of the 

matter described in the Basis for Qualified 

Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper 

books of account as required by law have been 

kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books

iii.  Except for the effects/possible effects of the 

matter described in the Basis of Qualified 

Opinion paragraph the Balance Sheet, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash flow 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account.

iv.  Except for the effects/possible effects of the 

matter described in the Basis of Qualified 
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Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid financial 

statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the 

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.
THv.   In terms of circular No. GSR 463 (E) DATED 5  

June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, Government of India, the Company 

being Government Company, is exempt from 

the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act 

regarding disqualification of Directors. 

vi.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness 

of such controls, refer to our separate Report 

in “Annexure C”.

vii. With respect to the other matters to be 

included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 

best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us:

a.   The Company has detailed in Note 2.19 ( i ) & 

2.19 (ii) to the financial statements, has 

disclosed the  impact of pending litigations on 
stits financial position as at 31  March 2023. 

b.  The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable 

losses.

c.   There were no amounts required to be 

transferred to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company.

viii.  a) T he Management has represented that, to 

the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Company to or in any other person or 

e n t i t y,  i n c l u d i n g  f o r e i g n  e n t i t y 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in  writing or otherwise, that 

the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly lend  or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on  behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries;  

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the 

best of its knowledge and belief, no  f u n d s 

(which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been received  b y  t h e 

Company from any person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Funding  Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the  Company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or  entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 

Party  (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been 

considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 

notice that has caused us to believethat the 
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representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 

Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 

above, contain any material misstatement

ix.  As stated in Note 2.31 to the financial 

statements

a)   The Board of Directors of the Company has not 

proposed any dividend for the year and hence 

no approval of the same is required at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Chartered Accountants 
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(Dibyendu Banerjee)
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Place: Kolkata 
Dated: 31st July, 2023

Sd/-

x.   Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies 

which use accounting software for maintaining 

their books of account, to use such an 

accounting software which has a feature of 

audit trail, with effect from the financial year 

beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, 

reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not 

applicable for the current financial year.
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Statement on the matters specified in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 

ANNEXURE A 
to the INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT on 

BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED for the 
st

Year Ended 31  March 2023

To the best of our information and according to the 
explanations provided to us by the company and 
the books and records examined by us in the normal 
course of in the normal course of audit, we state 
that:

(I) (a)  (A)   The Company is maintaining proper  
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Plant 
and Equipment. However, the PPE register is 
found to be inadequate as regards the 
specific location of the asset, supplier 
details, particulars regarding impairment 
and details as to sale, discarding etc. The 
register is maintained in MS Excel file. 

     (B)  The company does not have any 
intangible assets.

(b)   The Company has a programme of physical 
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment 
to cover all assets once every two years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the company and nature 
of its assets. Pursuant to the programme all 
Property, Plant and Equipment were due for 
verification during the year and were 
physically verified by a firm of Chartered 
Accountants during May 2023 covering HO, 
Maniktala Factory, Panihati Factory and 
distribution centers at Kolkata only. 
According to information and explanations 
given to us, discrepancies in physical 
verification could not be ascertained and 
addressed in the absence of asset tagging 
information.  

(c)    Based on our examination of the property tax 
receipts of land on which building is 
constructed disclosed in the financial 
statements included under Property, Plant 
and Equipment are held in the name of the 
company as at the balance sheet date. In 
case of land other than land on building 
management has not been able to place 
before us the title deeds/ transfer deeds/ 
conveyance deed in one of the cases and 
hence we are not in a position to confirm if all 
the entire land as disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the 
company as at the balance sheet date.  A l s o , 
as per the statement of land placed before us 
which includes 42 deeds few of which were 
not original deeds. 

(d)   The company has not revalued any of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(e)    Based on the information and explanations 
furnished to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated during the year or are pending 

st
against the company as at 31  March 2023 for 
holding any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(as amended in 2016) and Rules made 
thereunder.

(ii)(a) Physical verification of inventory has been 
conduc ted  once  i n  a  yea r  by  t he 
management. The coverage and procedure of 
such verification by the management is 
appropriate and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.  The 
company has its internal audit division which 
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is responsible for carrying out physical 
verification of Finished Goods, stores, 
spares, raw materials and packing materials. 
We were informed that, the discrepancies 
noticed on physical verification of stocks 
compared with the book records were not 
material and the same has been dealt with in 
the books of account and we have relied on 
the same for this.    

(b)   The company has not been sanctioned any 
working capital limits at any point of time 
during the year from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets and hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) 
b of the Order is not applicable.  

(iii)   The Company has not made investments in or 
provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans secured or unsecured to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and 
granted unsecured loans to other parties, 
during the year. Accordingly reporting under 
(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the order is not 
applicable.

(iv)   The Company does not have loans, 
investments, guarantee and security 
involving the provisions of Section 185 and 
Section 186 of the Companies Act.

(v)    The Company has not accepted deposits 
attracting the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the rules framed 
there under.  No order has been passed by 
Company Law Board or National Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
court or any other Tribunal requiring 
compliance.

(vi)   Pursuant to the rules made by the Central 

Government, the Company is required to 

maintain cost records as specified under 

Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its 

products. We have broadly reviewed the 

same and are of the opinion that, prima 

facie, the prescribed accounts and records 

have been made and maintained. We have, 

however, not made a detailed examination of 

the records with a view to determining 

whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and 

explanations given to us and the records of 

the Company examined by us, in our opinion, 

the Company was generally regular in 

depositing with the appropriate authorities 

undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, 

Income Tax, Cess and other Statutory dues 

like Goods and Services Tax, except for 

₹87.27 Lakhs in respect of Municipal Tax and 

Land Revenue relating to  Mumbai properties 

of the Company which are in arrear for more 

than six months. The Company does not have 

any liability in respect of Service Tax, Duty of 

excise and sales tax during the year since 

effective from July 01, 2017 these statutory 

dues have been subsumed in Goods and 

Service Tax. The Company does not have 

liability in respect of Duty of Customs

(b)   The amounts involved and the forum where 

dispute is pending, in respect of dues of   

excise duty or Central Sales Tax or value 

added tax or GST that have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute, are  

dues amounting to ₹195.68 Lakhs, ₹1180.92 

Lakhs, ₹1612.94 Lakhs and 84.47 lacs relating 

to Excise Duty, Central Sales Tax, Value Added 

Tax and GST respectively has not been 

provided for and no amount has been 

deposited against the same with the 

respective authorities as disclosed in 

Paragraph No.  2.19 in Note 2. 

(viii) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 
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explanations given to us and the records of 

the Company examined by us, there were no 

transact ions  re lat ing to previous ly 

unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during 

the year in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act,1961.

(ix) (a) The Company has not taken any loans or 

other borrowings from any lender. Hence 

reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is 

not applicable. Central Government has 

granted loans from time to time to the 

Company. This entire loan of ₹10743 Lacs 

along with Interest Accrued amounting to 

₹8621.64 Lacs has been waived by the 

government as per Note 2.2.

Details of outstanding loan and interest prior to 

waive of is given hereunder.

(d) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us and the procedures 

performed by us, and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of 

the Company, we report that the Company 

has not raised any fund on short term during 

the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix) 

(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us and the procedures 

performed by us, and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of 

the Company, we report that the Company 

has not taken any funds from any entity 

during the year and hence reporting on 

clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us and the procedures 

performed by us, we report that the 

Company has not raised any loans during the 

year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix) (f) of 

the Order is not applicable.

(x)(a) The company has not raised moneys by way of 

initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments during the year 

and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 

the Order is not applicable.

    (b) During the year company has not made any 

preferential allotment or private placement 

of shares or convertible debentures (fully or 

partly or optionally) and hence reporting 

under clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not 

applicable.

(xi) (a)During the course of our examination of the 

books and records of the Company, carried 

out in accordance with the generally 

(b) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our audit procedures, we report that the 

company has not been declared Willful 

Defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or any government or any government 

authority.

(c) The company has not taken any term loan 

during the year and there is no outstanding 

term loan at the beginning of the year and 

hence, reporting under clause 3(ix) (c) of the 

Order is not applicable.

Principal 
Amount of 

Interest free loan
(₹In Lakhs)

Interest Accrued 
and Due on interest 

bearing loan 
(₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars
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accepted auditing practices in India, and 

acco rd ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us, we have neither 

come across any instance of material fraud 

by the Company or on the Company, noticed 

or reported during the year, nor have we been 

informed of  any  such case  by  the 

Management.

(b) No report under sub section 12 of section 143 

of the Companies Act 2013 has been filed in 

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

with the Central Government during the year 

and up to the date of this report.

(c) We have not been informed by the company 

any complaints raised by whistle blower and 

received by the company during the year 

(and up to the date of this report) and hence 

reporting under clause 3(xi) (c) of the Order 

is not applicable.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company hence 

reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is 

not applicable.

(xiii) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us and based on our 

examinations of the records of the Company, 

there has been no payment under section 177 

and 188 of the Companies Act 2013 and hence 

clause (xiii) of the order is not applicable. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an 

internal audit system commensurate with 

the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit 

reports for the year under audit, issued to the 

Company during the year under report, in 

determining the nature, timing and extent of 

our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company 

has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with its Directors or persons 

connected with its directors and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company being neither 

required to be registered under section 45-IA 

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, nor 

having conducted any non-banking financial / 

housing finance activities during the year, 

reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) or (b) of the 

Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations 

provided by the Management, the Company 

not being a Core Investment Company (CIC) 

nor having any such CIC within the Group (as 

defined in the Core Investment Companies 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016), reporting 

under clause 3(xvi)(c) or (d) of the order is 

not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses 

du r ing  the  financ ia l  yea r  and  the 

immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the 

Statutory Auditors during the year and hence 

reporting under clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

(xix) Accord ing  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  and 

explanations given to us and on the basis of 

the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other 

information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and management plans and based 
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on our examination of the evidence 

supporting the assumptions, nothing has 

come to our notice which causes us to believe 

that

 material uncertainties exist as on the date of 

the audit that company is capable of meeting 

its liabilities existing as on the date of the 

balance sheet as and when they fall due 

within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date 

of the audit report and we neither give any 

guarantee nor any assurance that all 

liabilities falling due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date, will get 

For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Membership No. 052218
Partner

UDIN:23052218BGZBZD1976

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: 31st July, 2023

discharged by the Company as and when they 

fall due. We however further state that there 

is no assurance as to future viability of the 

company. 

(xx) (a) The company has spent the required 

amount in respect of other than ongoing 

project as specified in Schedule VII to the 

Companies Act within a period of six months 

of the expiry of financial year in compliance 

with second proviso to sub-section (5) of 

section 135 of the said Act.

(b) Since the company is not dealing with any 

ongoing project clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order 

is not applicable

(xxi) Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE B 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Compliance to the Directions u/s 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Whether the company has IT system in place to 

process all the accounting transactions 

through IT system? If yes, the implications of 

processing of accounting transactions outside 

IT system on the integrity of the accounts along 

with the financial implications, if any, may be 

stated.

Whether there any restructuring of an existing 

loan or cases of waiver/write off of 

debts/loans/ interest etc. made by a lender to 

the company due to the company's inability to 

repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may 

be stated. (In case, lender is a Government 

Company, then this direction is also applicable 

for statutory auditor of lender Company)

Whether funds received/receivable for 

specific schemes from central/ state agencies 

were properly accounted for/ utilized as per 

term and conditions? List it's the cases of 

deviation.

Yes, it has IT system for accounting 
transactions. However, property, Plant & 
Equipment Register is maintained in MS Excel 
file by it since past many years. The details 
available in the excel sheet is inadequate as 
per the requirement.

Also, Inventory records are maintained in 
manual register/MS Excel based format.

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable

For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Membership No. 052218

Partner

UDIN:23052218BGZBZD1976

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: 31st July, 2023
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ANNEXURE C
 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

We have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of Bengal Chemicals & 
Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the Company”) as of 

st 31 March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to Company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to 

an audit of internal financial controls, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 
established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations 
given to and based on our audit, the material 
weaknesses in internal financial controls as at 
March 31, 2023 have been identified and stated 
below:

(a) The Company did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for Property, Plant and 
Equipment regarding process of identification 
of obsolete and damaged assets and also timely 
detection of missing assets, reconciliation of 

Trade Receivable and short-term loans and 
advances i.e., advances under Project 
Creditors which could potentially result in over 
stating of Company's profit for the year. 

A material weakness is a deficiency or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal financial 
control over financial reporting, such that there is a 
reasonab le  pos s ib i l i t y  that  a  mater ia l 
misstatements of the company's annual financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a 
timely basis.

In our opinion except for the effects /possible 
effects of the material weaknesses described 
above on the achievement of the objectives of the 
control criteria, the Company has maintained, in 
all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 

st
operating effectively as of 31  March 2023 based on 
“ the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the company considering 
essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note of Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

We have considered the material weaknesses 
identified and reported above in determining the 
nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in 
our audit of financial statements for the year ended 

st31  March 2023 of the Company, and these material 
weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.

For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Membership No. 052218
Partner
UDIN:23052218BGZBZD1976

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: 31st July, 2023

Sd/-
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Management Reply to Statutory Auditor's Report 
(Qualified Opinion)

Auditor's Qualified opinion Management Response / AssuranceSl 
No.

A Property, Plant & Equipment:

 The records of Property, Plant and Equipment 

maintained by the Company in its Asset 

Register in MS Excel is found to be inadequate 

as regards the specific location of the asset, 

OEM/Capacity etc. asset tagging and 

particulars as to impairment and sale/ 

d isposal .  D iscrepancies  in  phys ical 

verification could not be ascertained and 

addressed in the absence of asset tagging 

information. Also, capital work –in-progress 

(CWIP) of Rs. 2527.31 lakhs (as per Note 10 of 

Financial Statements) as on 31.03.2023 has 

not been included in the Asset Register, 

considering that such balance has been lying 

as such for 10 years and diminution in value of 

the CWIP components due to obsolescence/  

unused could not be ascertained.  Further, 

Company's land details as per the Asset 

Register and related land documents signify 

that some of the records are very old and 

could not be produced for verification.

B Trade Receivable 

 No reconciliation of trade receivable with 

respective customers has been done by the 

Company with reference to dues from 

Government departments / customers. A sum 

of R. 1136.44 lacs is due from Govt. 

department/customers beyond three years. 

The effect of adjustment arising from such 

reconciliation and possible loss, if any, that 

BCPL is a century old company and asset 
records are equally old where details of Fixed 
Assets are not fully recorded and there 
remains a deficiency for identifying for such 
Fixed Assets. The entire Fixed Asset Register 
has to be resurrected vis-à-vis the actual 
Fixed Assets available for usage and the 
condition thereof by way of identification, 
reconciliation and tagging of Fixed Asset vis-à-
vis the Fixed Asset Register/records. It needs 
to be appreciated that this is a mammoth 
exercise and cannot be done overnight.  A 
special team has been formed for addressing 
this issue and take appropriate action for 
resurrection of the Fixed Asset Register in 
terms of requirement of CARO 2022 and the 
same is  to be completed within FY 2023-24.

Appropriate entries in the PPE Register will be 
made wrt CWIP items with relevant details / 
break-up as part of the activity planned.

The audit observation is acknowledged. The 
reasons for debtors arising from sale to Govt. 
Institutions / Departments are manifold.  The 
p a y i n g  a u t h o r i t i e s  r e m i t  a m o u n t s 
(NEFT/RTGS) without any reference to the 
bill/purchase order no. and also the 
deductions made on account of LD/TDS/TCS 
etc. from the original amount payable are not 
made known to the payee. As such, the 
receivables from such debtorsare not fully 
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may arise on account of non-recovery of such 

dues is not ascertained. Company has not 

provided for such probable loss by making 

provisions in the books.

C Loans and Advances

 The balance of accounts of parties/vendors 
under the head Loans & Advances as well as 
debit balances of Project Creditors are 
subject to confirmation and adjustments 
necessary upon reconciliation. This includes 
Rs. 120.62 Lacs advances paid to Project 
Creditors at Maniktala Factory lying 
unadjusted for several years. Further Rs. 
32.00 lacs are receivable from a government 
company under Liquidation. The effect of 
adjustment arising from such reconciliation 
and possible losses due to non-adjustment of 
such dues is not ascertained.

D The Company did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for Property, Plant 
and Equipment regarding process for 
identification of onsolete and damaged asset 
and also timely detection of missing assets, 
reconciliation of Trade Receivable and short 
–term loans and advances i.e. advances under 
Project Creditors which could potentially 
result in over stating of the Company's profit 
for the year.

knocked off / adjusted / accounted for against 
the payment received.  Efforts to collect such 
information from the remitting agencies 
majorly proves futile and no response is 
forthcoming from the Govt. customers. Such 
unreconciled/unreceived balances have 
accumulated, since Govt. dues cannot be 
written-off upfront. It is not felt prudent to 
write off provide for doubtful debts against 
Govt. dues in the absence of specific policy in 
this regard. 

It is assured that steps have been taken to 
follow up again with the relevant Govt. 
Departments/Institutions (by deputing 
personnel to visit) as to the dues against which 
no payment has been received/payment short 
received and provide for non-receivable 
accordingly.

It is assured that all vendor balances relating 
to old project will be analysed by a task-force 
/ committee constituted for the purpose and 
follow-up with the respective entities for 
adjustment / recovery of the said balances as 
the case may be, to the extent feasible. 
With respect to the amount of Rs. 32.00 lacs 
receivable from Bengal Immunity Co. Ltd. (a 
PSU) under the same ministry, the matter is 
sub-judice and will be placed before 
appropriate authority later on.

The replies to the matter are already 
mentioned under point no. A,B and C 
hereinabove is reiterated. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS' REPORT
stFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  Day of March, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time]

To,
The Members,
BENGAL CHEMICALS AND PHARMACEUTICALS 
LTD CIN- U24299WB1981GOI033489
6 GANESH CHUNDER AVENUE, KOLKATA WB 700013, 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 

compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by 

Bengal Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Ltd 

Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). The 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the 

information provided by the Company, its officers, 

and authorized representatives during the conduct 

of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report  that in our 

opinion the Company has, during the audit period 
st

covering the financial year ended 31  March, 2023 

complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made.

We have examined the books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year 
stended 31  March, 2023 according to the provisions 

of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)and the 

rules made thereunder;

II.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 

and the rules made thereunder;

III.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 

and Bye-Law framed hereunder; Not 

Applicable.

IV.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 

the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 

Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings: Not Applicable.

V.  The following Regulations (as amended from 

time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992:-

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; - Not Applicable 

during the audit period

b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable during the 

audit period

c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; Not Applicable during the audit period

d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 as amended from 

time to time: Not Applicable during the 

period under review.
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e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; - 

Not Applicable during the audit period.

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable during the 

audit period.

g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

-Not Applicable during the audit period.

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

-Not Applicable during the audit period

I)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

( L i s t i ng  Ob l i ga t i on s  and  D i s c l o su re 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Not 

Applicable during the audit period

j)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 Not 

Applicable during the audit period

VI.  Other Laws as applicable to the Company 

detailed hereunder below:

●  Department of Public Enterprise Guidelines.

●  The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

●  Factories Act,1948

●  Pharmacy Act,1948

●  Homeopathy Central Council Act,1973

●  Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable 

Advertisement) Act,1954

●  Narcotics Drugs and Psychotropic Substance 

Act,1985

●  Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006

We have relied on the representation made by the 

Company and its officers for systems and 

mechanism formed by the Company for compliance 

under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations.

We have also examined the compliance by the 

Company of the following statutory provisions/ 

standards/regulations:

a. The Secretarial Standards (SS - 1 and SS – 2) 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India.

  During the period under review the Company 

has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. 

mentioned above except the provisions of:

a.  The Secretarial Standard 1 – The company has 

contravened the provisions of the Secretarial 

Standards 1 as it has not circulated the draft 

minutes within the stipulated time and the 

compliance related to roll call and video 

conferencing is not followed.

b.  Section 118 of the Act as it has not placed the 

final minutes in the Minutes book within One 

month form the date of the meeting.

c.  Section 135 of the Act as the company has 

made shortfall in spending the stipulated 

amount required to be spent under the Act and 

also the calculation to be made under section 

198 of the Act.

d.  Section 149 of the Act as the company has not 

appointed required number of Independent 

Directors stipulated under the Act.

e.  Section 177 of the Act as the Audit committee 

has not undertaken its terms of reference as 

stipulated under subsection (4)(vi)and also 

related to the compositions of the Committee.

f.  Section 178 of the Act as the composition is not 

as per the Act.

g.  The company has shortfall in the number of 

members as prescribed under the Act.
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h.  The company has not complied with the 

requirement relating to minimum number of 

Directors as required under the act.

I.  The company has not filed e-form CSR-2 for 

the financial year 2022-23.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly 

constituted with proper balance of Non- 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to 

schedule the Board/Committee Meetings. 

Information and circulation of the agenda with 

detailed information thereof, convening of 

meetings was done in compliance with the 

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, 

etc. A system exists for seeking and obtaining 

Place: Kolkata Date: 01/09/2023
Peer Review Certificate No. 2042/2022
UDIN: F011511E000911520 

further information and clarifications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meetings.

Resolutions were carried through majority 

decision. The minutes of the meetings held during 

the audit period did not reveal any dissenting 

members' views.

We further report that there are adequate 

systems and processes  in  the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, Rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period under 

review we have not come across with any events 

having major bearing on the affairs of the 

Company.

For Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

Prateek Kohli Partner

C.P. No.: 16457

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE A

To,
The Members,
BENGAL CHEMICALS AND PHARMACEUTICALS LTD CIN- U24299WB1981GOI033489
6 GANESH CHUNDER AVENUE, KOLKATA WB 700013 IN, 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done 

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata Date: 01/09/2023
Peer Review Certificate No. 2042/2022
UDIN: F011511E000911520 

For Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

Prateek Kohli Partner

C.P. No.: 16457

Sd/-
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Management Replies to Secretarial 
Auditor's observation

Audit ObservationsSl 
No.

a The Secretarial Standard 1 – The company has 
contravened the provisions of the Secretarial 
Standards 1 as it has not circulated the draft 
minutes within the stipulated time and the 
compliance related to roll call and video 
conferencing is not followed.

b Section 118 of the Act as it has not placed the 
final minutes in the Minutes book within one 
month form the date of the meeting

c Section 135 of the Act as the company has 
made shortfall in spending the stipulated 
amount required to be spent under the Act 
and also the calculation to be made under 
section 198 of the Act

d Section 149 of the Act as the company has not 
appointed required number of Independent 
Directors stipulated under the Act

e i) Section 177 of the Act as the Audit 
committee has not undertaken its terms of 
reference as stipulated under subsection 
(4)(vi) and also related to the compositions of 
the Committee

Management Reply

Noted for future Compliance

Noted for future Compliance

Noted for future Compliance

The appointment of Directors of the Company 
(Executive, Non-executive and Independent 
Directors) are made directly by administrative 
ministry.

We have received the notification regarding 
the appointment of Shri Sanjay Samrao Patil as 
non-official Independent Director on the 
Board of Director of BCPL and the same is duly 
complied with.

Due to non-appointment of Independent 
Director by the administrative ministry during 
the year under review, the provisions of the 
stipulated section regarding the Composition 
of the Committee was not duly complied with.

With regard to function of the audit 
committee as stipulated under subsection 
(4)(iv) – the Company noted the auditor's 
observation.
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Audit ObservationsSl 
No.

f Section 178 of the Act as the composition is 
not as per the Act

g The company has shortfall in the number of 
members as prescribed under the Act

h The company has not complied with the
requirement relating to minimum number of 
Directors as required under the act

i The company has not filed e-form CSR-2 for 
the financial year 2022-23.

Management Reply

Due to non-appointment of Independent 
Director by the administrative ministry during 
the year under review, the provisions of the 
stipulated section regarding the Composition 
of the Committee was not duly complied with. 

The Company noted the auditor's observation. 
The same will be taken up with the 
administrative ministry.

The Company noted the auditor's observation. 
The same will be taken up with the 
administrative ministry

The Company noted the observation for 
compliance.
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BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LTD., KOLKATA

(A Government of India Enterprise)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Significant accounting policies                                                                  - 1
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements - 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI F.R. No.: 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Partner 
Membership No.: 052218 

(S. Ghose Chowdhury) 
Director (Finance)

DIN:10194519 

Place:  Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2023 

 (N Roy Pramanik)
HoD Finance

(Nirja Saraf)
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-

69



BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LTD., KOLKATA

(A Government of India Enterprise)

42  ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23ND

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

As per our Report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements - 2

For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI F.R. No.: 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Partner 
Membership No.: 052218 

(S. Ghose Chowdhury) 
Director (Finance)

DIN:10194519 

Place:  Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2023 

 (N Roy Pramanik)
HoD Finance

(Nirja Saraf)
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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As per our Report of even date attached

(Rs. in Lakhs)

This Cash Flow Statement has been prepared as per "Indirect Method" as prescribed by Accoun�ng Standard -3 (revised) "Cash Flow Statements"

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI F.R. No.: 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Partner 
Membership No.: 052218 

(S. Ghose Chowdhury) 
Director (Finance)

DIN:10194519 

Place:  Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2023 

 (N Roy Pramanik)
HoD Finance

(Nirja Saraf)
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
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1.1  Basis for preparation of financial 

statements: 

These Financial Statements have been prepared 

and presented in accordance with Indian Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP).  

GAAP comprises mandatory Accounting Standards 

as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (The Act) read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Provisions 

of the Act (to the extent notified). The financial 

statements are prepared on accrual basis under the 

historical cost convention. The Accounting Policies 

have been consistently applied except where a 

newly issued Accounting Standard is initially 

adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 

standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy 

hitherto in use.  The Financial Statements are 

presented in Indian Rupee rounded off to the 

nearest Rupee in Lakhs.

1.2  Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in 

conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles requires judgements, estimates and 

assumptions to be made that affect the reported 

amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of 

contingent liabilities on the date of the financial 

statements and the reported amounts of revenues 

and expenses during the reporting period. 

Accounting estimates could change from period to 

period. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 

made as the Management becomes aware of 

changes in circumstances surrounding the 

estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in 

the financial statements in the period in which 

1.0  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2022-23
changes are made and, if material, their effects are 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

1.3  C l a s s ifica t i on  o f  A s se t s  and 

Liabilities as Current/ Non-Current: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as 

current or non-current as per the Company's 

normal operating cycle.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any 

of the following criteria:

(I)  It is expected to be realized in, or is intended 

for sale or consumption in, the Company's 

normal operating cycle;

(ii)  It is held primarily for the purpose of being 

traded;

(iii) It is expected to be realized within 12 months 

after the reporting date; or

(iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is 

restricted from being exchanged or used to 

settle a liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting date.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies 

any of the following criteria:

(I)  It is expected to be settled in the Company's 

normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being 

traded;

(iii) It is due to be settled within 12 months after 

the reporting date; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional 

right to defer settlement of the liability for at 

least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms 

of a liability that could, at the option of the 
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(B)  Intangible Assets

(I)  Intangible fixed assets comprise brands, 

trademarks and computer software, which are 

stated at cost less accumulated amortization 

and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an 

item of intangible fixed asset comprises its 

purchase price, including import duties and 

other non-refundable taxes or levies and any 

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its 

working condition for its intended use. Any 

trade discount and rebates are deducted in 

arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid 

towards acquisition of intangible fixed assets 

outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are 

shown under long-term loans and advances and 

cost of assets not ready for intended use before 

the period end, are shown as intangible fixed 

assets under development.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only 

when it increases the future economic benefits 

from the specific asset to which it relates.

1.5 Goods and Services Tax 

Goods and Services Tax (GST) at the applicable 

rates is charged by the Company on the outward 

supply of Goods and Services subject to adjustment 

of  available input credits.

1.6 Depreciation/ Amortization:

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an 

asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its 

estimated residual value. 

In respect of Tangible Fixed Assets (other than 

Freehold Land and Capital Work-in-Progress) 

acquired during the year, Depreciation/ 

Amortisation is charged on a Straight Line basis so 

as to write-off the cost of the Assets over the useful 

lives and for the Assets acquired prior to April 1, 

counterparty, result in its settlement by the 

issue of equity instruments do not affect its 

classification.

  Current assets and Current Liabilities include 
the current portion of the financial assets and 
liabilities respectively.   All other assets/ 
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle: 

Operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash or cash equivalents.

1.4 Fixed Asset:

(A)  Tangible Assets

(I)  Tangible fixed assets are stated at the cost of 
acquisition or construction and include 
amounts added on revaluation of an asset, less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. The cost of an item of tangible 
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, 
including import duties and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use. Any trade 
discount and rebates are deducted in arriving 
at the purchase price. Advances paid towards 
acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding 
at each Balance Sheet date, are shown under 
long-term loans and advances and cost of 
assets not ready for intended use before the 
period end, are shown as “Capital Work in 
Progress”.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure related to an item of 
tangible fixed asset is capitalized only if it 
increases the future benefits from the existing 
assets beyond its previously assessed standards 
of performance.

(iii) Incidental expenditure during construction 
pe r i od  i n cu r red  up  t o  t he  da te  o f 
commissioning is capitalized.
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investments are made are classified as current 

investments. All other investments are 

classified as long-term investments. 

(ii) On initial recognition, all investments are 

measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase 

price and directly attributable acquisition 

charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If 

an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, 

by the issue of shares or other securities, the 

acquisition cost is the fair value of the 

securities issued. If an investment is acquired 

in exchange for another asset, the acquisition 

is determined by reference to the fair value of 

the asset given up or by reference to the fair 

value of the investment acquired, whichever is 

more clearly evident.

(iii) Current investments are carried in the 

financial statements at lower of cost and fair 

value determined on an individual investment 

basis. Long-term investments are carried at 

cost. However, provision for diminution in 

value is made to recognize a decline other than 

temporary in the value of the investments.

(iv) On disposal of an investment, the difference 

between its carrying amount and net disposal 

proceeds is charged or credited to the 

statement of profit and loss.

1.11 Government Grants:

(i)  Capital grants / subsidy: Capital grants / 

subsidy relating to specific assets is reduced 

from the gross values of assets and capital 

grants for project capital subsidy are credited 

to capital reserve and retained till the 

requisite conditions are fulfilled.

2014, the carrying amount as on April 1, 2014 is 

depreciated over the remaining useful life.  The 

useful life is same as prescribed in Part-C of 

Schedule-II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Intangible Fixed Assets are amortized over their 

respective individual estimated useful lives on a 

straight-line basis, commencing from the date the 

asset is available to the Company for its use.  

1.7 Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or 

construction of qualifying assets, up to the date of 

capitalization of such assets, are capitalized as 

part of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that 

necessarily takes substantial period of time to get 

ready for its intended use.  All other borrowing 

costs are recognized as an expense in the period in 

which they are incurred and charged Profit and Loss 

Statement.

1.8 Liability :

Liability in respect of purchase of both capital and 

revenue nature are accounted for on the basis of 

date of issue of Material Inward Slips.

1.9 Impairment of assets:

As asset is treated as impaired when the carrying 

cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value.  An 

impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss 

Statement in the year in which an asset is identified 

as impaired.  The impairment loss recognised in 

prior accounting period is reversed if there has 

been a change in the estimate of recoverable 

amount.

1.10  Investments: 

(i)  Investments that are readily realizable and 

intended to be held for not more than twelve 

months from the date on which such 
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(ii) Revenue grants / subsidy: 

a)   Grant-in-aid received from Government of 

India for implementation of Voluntary 

Retirement Scheme and Salary Arrears is 

matched with related costs through Profit & 

Loss Account.  Unutilized grants are shown 

under Current Liabilities.

b)   All other revenue grants are credited to Profit 

& Loss Account.

1.12 Revenue Recognition: 

(I)  Revenue from sale of goods in the course of 

ordinary activities is recognised when the 

property in the goods, or all significant risks 

and rewards of their ownership are transferred 

to the customer and no significant uncertainty 

ex i s t s  regard ing  the  amount  of  the 

consideration that will be derived from the 

sale of the goods as well as regarding its 

collection. Revenue includes excise duty and is 

net of applicable sales tax/ value added tax / 

GST and also net of applicable discounts and 

allowances.

(ii) Sales return is accounted for in the year of such 

returns from the customers.

(iii) Income from royalty, milestone payments, 

technical know-how arrangements, exclusivity 

and patents settlement and licensing 

arrangements is recognised on an accrual basis 

in accordance with the terms of the relevant 

agreement. Any non-compete fee is recognised 

over the term of the agreement on a straight 

line basis.

(iv) Export incentive entitlements are recognised 

as income when the right to receive credit as 

per the terms of the scheme is established in 

respect of the exports made, and where there 

is no significant uncertainty regarding the 

ultimate collection of the relevant export 

proceeds. 

(v)  Profit on disposal/ sale of investments is 

recognised as income in the period in which the 

investment is sold/disposed off.

(vi) Dividend income is recognised when the right 

to receive the income is established. Interest 

income is recognised on a time proportion basis 

taking into account the amount outstanding 

and the interest rate applicable. Discount or 

premium on debt securities held is accrued 

over the period to maturity.

(vii) Rental Income from renting of properties is 

recognized on accrual basis as per agreements 

entered with the tenants.

1.13 Foreign Currency Transactions and 

Translations :

Transactions in foreign exchange other than those 

covered by forward contracts are accounted for at 

the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 

transactions. Foreign currency receivables/ 

payables other than those covered by forward 

contracts are translated at the year- end exchange 

rates. Gain or losses arising out of such transaction 

are adjusted to the Profit and Loss Account. Foreign 

Currency loans are valued at year end exchange 

rates.

Outstanding forward contracts, if any, as at the 

Balance Sheet date are reinstated at the exchange 

rate prevailing on the date.

1.14 Inventories:

Finished Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and 

net realizable value (Trade Price minus 14% of 

Trade Price). Raw, Packing material and stores and 

spares are valued at cost .Work in progress is 

valued on the basis of raw material cost plus 30% of 
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raw material cost on account of labour. In case of 

bulk finished stock 41% of raw material cost is 

added as cost of overhead. Stock valuation of raw 

material and packing materials are determined on 

First in First out basis and that for stores and spares 

determined on weighted average cost basis. The 

valuation of Inventory is calculated on those items 

which are considered good by the Management.

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents:

(I)  Cash and bank balances comprise of cash at 

bank, cash in hand, Cheques in hand, demand 

deposits and bank deposits with maturity 

period up to 12 months from Balance Sheet 

date.

(ii) For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash 

and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank 

balances, cheques in hand and demand 

deposits net of bank overdrafts.

1.16 Research and development costs:

Research and development costs, incurred for 

development of products are expensed as 

incurred. Development costs which relate to the 

design and testing of new or improved materials, 

products or processes or for existing products in 

new territories are recognised as an intangible 

asset when the company can demonstrate all the 

following:

(I)  It is technically feasible to complete the 

development of asset and it will be available 

for sale / use.

(ii)  It is expected that such development will be 

completed and used / sold

(iii) It is expected that such assets will generate 

future economic benefits.

(iv) There are adequate resources to complete 

such development.

(v)  It is possible to measure reliably the 

expenditure attributable to the asset during 

development.

Research and development expenditure of a 

capital nature is added to fixed assets. Following 

the initial recognition of the development 

expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied 

requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 

accumulated amortization and accumulated 

impairment losses. The carrying value of the 

development cost is tested for impairment 

annually.

1.17  Employee Benefits: 

(I)  Provident fund:  The Company makes specified 

monthly contribution towards the employees' 

provident fund to the provident fund trust 

administered by the Company. The minimum 

interest payable by the provident fund trust to 

the beneficiaries every year is notified by the 

Government. The Company has an obligation 

to make good the shortfall, if any, between the 

return on respective investments of the trust 

and the notified interest rate.

(ii) Gratuity:The Company has an obligation 

towards Gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 

plan covering eligible employees. The plan 

provides for a lump sum payment to vested 

employees at retirement, death while in 

employment or on termination of employment 

of an amount based on the respective 

employee's salary and the tenure of 

employment. Vesting occurs upon completion 

of five years of service. Company provides 

liability towards Gratuity as per actuarial 

valuation determined by an independent 

actuary at the balance sheet date.
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(iii)  Compensated Absence/ Leave Salary: As per 

the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be 

accumulated by the employees and carried 

forward to future periods to either be utilized 

during the service, or encashed. Encashment 

can be made during service, on retirement/ 

early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at 

resignation and upon death of the employee. 

The value of benefits is determined based on 

the seniority and the employee's salary. 

Accordingly, Company records an obligation for 

such compensated absences in the period in 

which the employee renders the services that 

increase the entitlements. Company provides 

liability towards Compensated Absence/ Leave 

Salary as per actuarial valuation determined by 

an independent actuary at the balance sheet 

date.

1.18 Leases :

(i)  Where the Company is a Lessee

  Leases of assets under which all the risks and 

rewards of ownership are effectively retained 

by the lessor are classified as operating leases. 

Lease payments under operating leases are 

recognized as an expense on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term.

(ii) Where the Company is a Lessor

  Leases in which the Company does not transfer 

substantially all the risks and benefits of 

ownership of the asset are classified as 

operating Leases. Assets subject to operating 

leases are included in fixed assets. Lease 

income is recognized on a straight line basis 

over the lease term. Costs, including 

depreciation are recognized as an expense. 

Initial direct costs such as legal costs, 

brokerage costs,  etc are recognized 

immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

1.19 Segment Reporting: 

The Company prepares its segment information in 

conformity with the accounting policies adopted 

for preparing and presenting the financial 

statements of the Company and the company has 

identified three primary reporting segments viz 

Chemicals, Pharmaceuticals and Cosmetics & 

Home products. 

1.20 Taxes on Income:

(i)  Taxes including current income-tax are 

computed using the applicable tax rates and 

tax   laws. Liability for additional taxes, if any, 

is provided / paid as and when assessments are 

completed.

(ii) Deferred income- tax on timing differences is 

computed using the tax rates and tax laws that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted by 

the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset 

is recognized and carried forward for timing 

differences of items other than unabsorbed 

depreciation and accumulated losses only to 

the extent that there is a reasonable certainty 

that the assets can be realized in future. 

However, if there is unabsorbed depreciation 

or carry forward of losses deferred tax assets 

are recognized only if there is virtual certainty 

that there will be sufficient future taxable 

income available to realize the assets. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each 

balance sheet date for their realisablity.

1.21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

and Contingent Assets:

(i)  Provisions: A provision is recognized when the 

Company has a present obligation as a result of 

past event; it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be 
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required to settle the obligation and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its 

present value and are determined based on 

best estimate required to settle the obligation 

at the reportingdate. These estimates are 

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 

to reflect the current best estimates.

(iii) Contingent Liabilities: A contingent liability is 

a possible obligation that arises from past 

events whose existence will be confirmed by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 

more uncertain future events beyond the 

control of the Company or a present obligation 

that is not recognized because it is not 

probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation. A contingent 

liability also arises in extremely rare cases 

where there is a liability that cannot be 

recognized because it cannot be measured 

reliably. The Company does not recognize a 

contingent liability but discloses its existence 

in the financial statements.

(iv) Contingent assets: Contingent assets are not 

recognized in the financial statements. 

However, contingent assets are assessed 

continually and if it is virtually certain that an 

inflow of economic benefits will arise, the 

asset and related income are recognized in the 

period in which the change occurs.

1.22 Prior Period & Prepaid Transactions 

and Extra ordinary items :

(I)  Income/expenditure relating to prior period 

and prepaid expenses not exceeding 

Rs.25,000/- in each case are treated as 

income/expenditure of the current year.

(ii) Extra ordinary items has been disclosed on the 

statement of profit and loss account as a part 

of net profit or loss for the period .The nature 

and the amount of each extra ordinary item  

has been separately disclosed  in the 

statement of profit and loss in manner  that its 

impact on current profit and loss can be 

perceived.

1.23 Provision for Doubtful Debts:

The Company sells its products to various 

Government Departments, Private Firms and 

Dealers. As on the Balance Sheet date, the 

Company reviewed the realisability of Trade 

Receivables and Provision, if required, is made 

accordingly. Full Provision, however, is made in 

respect of amounts receivables from entities other 

than Government Departments, which are 

outstanding for a period exceeding three years

1.24 Earnings per share:

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by 

dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period 

attributable to equity shareholders by the 

weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period. The weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the period is adjusted for events of bonus 

issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating 

diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or 

loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of 

shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 

shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are 

deemed converted as of the beginning of the 

period, unless they have been issued at a later 

date.
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2. 0 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
2.1 The company is engaged in the business of 

Manufacturing and Selling of Industrial 
Chemicals, Drugs & Formulations and 
Cosmetics & Health Care Products

2.2 Funds provided by the Government of India 
and its Utilisation:

a) Government of India had infused funds/loans 
amounting to Rs. 15,200 lakhs towards Share 
Capital and Modernisation (Repairs & 
Replacements) of Plants, as detailed 
hereunder:

(Rs in Lakhs)

B) During the years 2005 to 2015 Government of 
India has released the following loans:

Type of Loan
 

 
Interest Free 

Loan 
Interest 

Bearing Loan 
Plan Loan – 
Unsecured 9000.00 --

 

Non-Plan Loan- 
Unsecured 1749.00 --

 

Interest - 8621.64 
Total 10,749.00 8,621.64

The Govt. of India has waived all Interest Free Loan 

of  Rs 19370.64 Lakhs (Rs  10,749 lakhs plus Rs 

8621.64 lakhs), vide letter F.No.53017/08/2017-

PSU(Part) dated 9th September 2021. Due to 

waiver by Govt. of India Short Term Loan amounted 

to Rs 10,749 lakhs and Interest of Rs 8621.64 has 

been transferred to Reserve & Surplus during 

2021-22.

2.3 S hort Term Fixed Deposit with Punjab National 

Bank/State Bank of India at the end of the year 

is Rs 3300.25 Lakhs including accrued interest 

(Previous Year Rs 2511.77 Lakhs), out of which 

(Rs in Lakhs)

an amount of Rs 87.00 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs 

35.00 Lakhs) is pledged with Punjab National 

Bank for issuing Bank Guarantees.

2.4 Employee benefits under AS-15

(a) (i) C ompany has an exempted Provident Fund 

Account maintained by PF Trust. 

(ii) During the year the Company has recognised Rs 

67.40 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs 61.83 Lakhs) as 

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund in 

the statement of Profit & Loss.

(iii) During the year, the Company has recognised 

Rs 19.60 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs 22.62 Lakhs) as 

Employer's contribution to EPS-95 in the 

statement of Profit & Loss.  

(b) Defined Benefit Plan / Long term Employee 

benefits in respect of Gratuity & Leave 

Encashment are recognised in the statement of 

Profit & Loss on the basis of Actuarial valuation 

done at the year end. The details of such 

employee benefits as recognised in the 

financial statement are given below: -

# For Board level Directors, the Superannuation age is 60 years.

Sl. 
No
 Particulars

 
Gratuity

 

(Non funded)
 Leave Encashment     

(Non funded)
 

 
2022-23

 
2021-22

 
2022-23

 
2021-22

1.
 

Amount
 

recognised 
in the Balance Sheet

 
    

 
Present value of 
obligations 

635.32
 

583.24
 

438.92
 

394.88

2. Reconciliation of 
Opening & Closing 
balance of 
obligations 

   

 Opening Balance 583.24 549.68  394.88  362.78
 Benefits Paid 38.52 96.25  16.51  29.36
 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) 52.08 33.56  44.04  32.10
 Closing Balance 635.32 583.24  438.92  394.88

3. Expenses recognised 
in P&L Account 

   

 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) 52.08 33.56  44.04  32.10
4. Actuarial Assumptions 

 
   

Mortality Table 2012-14 2012-14  2012-14  2012-14
Superannuation Age# 58 yrs. 58 yrs.  58 yrs.  58 yrs.
Attrition Rate 7.50%pa 7.50%pa  7.50%pa  7.50%pa
Discount Rate 7.18%pa 7.18%pa  7.18%pa  7.18%pa
Inflation Rate 7.50%pa 7.50%pa  7.50%pa  7.50%pa

(Rs in Lakhs)
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2.5 Segment Reporting- Primary segment information are as below:

2.6 Sales are shown after adjusting all discounts 
and others in the year 2022-23.

2.7 As per Accounting Standard -18 the disclosures 
of transactions with the related party – Nil.

2.8 Disclosure of Leases as per AS-19 Operating 
leases as lessors:

 The lease rentals are recognised as income as 
stated in the respective agreements.                                                                                                                                    

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 
a) Lease Rental recognised as      
Income during the Period 

990.41 898.92 

b) Lease Rentals(Office 
premises):- 

  

Gross Carrying Amount 1077.02 1077.02 

Accumulated Depreciation 383.03 371.88 

Depreciation recognised in Profit 
& Loss Account 

11.06 17.02 

2.9 The Company is charging CGST and SGST in 
case of intra state supply of Goods and 
Services and IGST in case of interstate supply 
of Goods and Services as per applicable rates. 
Revenue from operations during the year is 

stdisclosed net of GST. As on 31  March 2023, 
the Company has unutilised Input Tax Credit 
of Rs 20.59 Lakhs (Rs. 56.30 lakhs in previous 
year).  

2.10 He Clearing & Forwarding Agents appointed 
in different states for increasing the Sales of 
BCPL, who are having Finished Stocks as on 

st31  March 2023, that Stock have been 
considered as the Stock of BCPL.

2.11 During the year 2007-08, a fraud case was 
lodged against Shri S. Kar, Works Manager, 
Kanpur. The effect of such fraud has not been 
reflected in the Accounts since the matter is 
sub-judice.

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

REVENUE

620.54 1186.90 620.54 1186.90

389.67
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2.12 As per existing practice, debts  (other than 
Government debts) outstanding for more 
than three years as on 31.03.2023 has been 
provided for in the Accounts.

2.13 Details of Stock, Work-in-Progress, Sale & 
Raw Material Consumed:

a) F i n i s h e d  S t o c k  &  S a l e  o f  G o o d s 
Manufactured: -   

(Rs in Lakhs)

b) Work in Progress:-

c)  Break up of Raw Materials & Packing 
materials consumed:-

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 
Crude Drugs & Extracts                  394.25 286.52 
Organic Chemicals & solvent 656.99 574.24 
In Organic Chemicals & solvent 49.68 152.99 
Oils, Vegetables & Minerals 1140.65 989.54 
Minerals 129.97 153.83 
Packing Materials 831.15 733.46 
Others         3760.07 435.41 

Total 6962.76 3325.99 

(Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

2.14 Internal Control System has been designed 
and implemented to prevent and detect 
fraud or error, proper custody and use of 
assets and preparation of financial 

information.  No fraud or suspected fraud on 
or by the company has been noticed or 
reported during the year involving 
Management or Employees, who have 
significant roles in Internal Control which 
could have a material effect on the financial 
information.

2.15 Account balances, Trade Receivables, 
Advances, Deposits and other Current Assets 
have been taken in the financial statements 
on the basis of Books and records of the 
company, as reviewed by the Board about 
their realizebility and obligations to 
determine the carrying value required, in 
cases where confirmation of account 
balances have not been received.

2.16 In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the 
company, the realisable value of the assets in 
the ordinary course of business is not less 
than that stated in the Balance Sheet.  This 
evaluation is not applicable in the case of 
Fixed Assets.

2.17 The  company  has  no  l i t i ga t ion  o r 
legal/disputed matters relating the claims, if 
any, or demand against which there could be 
any future impact on its financial position, 
except for those disclosures under 
“Contingent Liabilities” (refer Note 
No.2.23).

2.18 Though the company has accumulated losses 
exceeding the Paid-up Capital, there is no 
significant doubt on the company's ability to 
cont inue  a s  a  go ing  concern .  The 
Management's use of estimates is considered 
to be appropriate for turning around the 
company and there i s  no mater ia l 
uncertainty as of now which would affect its 
ability to continue as a going concern.  In 
view of this, the accounts have been 
prepared on going concern basis. 

2.19 Contingent Liabilities not provided for in 
respect of:

(i) Demand amounting to Rs 195.68 Lakhs 
(Previous Year Rs.195.68 Lakhs), Rs 1180.92 
Lakh (Previous Year Rs 1175.17 Lakh) and 
Rs.1612.94 Lakhs (Previous Year 1605.16 
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Lakh), Rs 84.47 Lakhs relating to Excise Duty, 
Central Sales Tax, Value Added Tax and GST 
respectively have not been accepted by the 
Company and Appeals have been preferred 
with the respective Authorities.  The 
Company has not provided for the same in the 
Accounts till the final decision is received and 
no amount has been deposited against the 
same with the concerned Authorities.

st
 Post Balance Sheet date 31  March 2023 

'Settlement of Dispute' (SOD) for liability 
against VAT (WB) and CST have been settled 
through payment of dues as per SOD Scheme 
(Rs 227.11 Paid) against liability of Rs 
1633.56 lakhs with waiver accrued interest 
and penalty. 

(ii) Claims by Contractors/Employees pending in 
Arbitration/Courts/NCLT: Rs 477.25 Lakhs 
(PY- Rs 477.25 Lakhs)

(iii) Counter guarantee given to bank against 
guarantee issued by them on behalf     of the 
Company Rs 86.92 Lakhs (PY- Rs 18.92 Lakhs)

2.20 Estimated amount of contracts remaining 
to be executed on Capital Account and not 
provided for 

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to 
be executed on Capital Account and not 
provided for is Rs 2632.64Lakhs (PY Rs 
2,632.64Lakhs).

2.21 Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share is as 
below:

2.22 The names of Small Scale Undertakings to 
whom the Company owes sums, which are 
outstanding for more than 45 days at the 
Balance Sheet date are stated as below:

 

2022-23
 

2021-22
 

Profit after Tax as per Profit & 
Loss Account          

 
1019.37

 

747.16

 

Weighted average no. Of Equity 
Shares (in Numbers)

 
769604

 

769604

 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per 
Share (in Rs)

 
132.45

 

97.08

 

(Rs in Lakhs)

Sl.No.  Name of the Party Name of the Party 

NIL 

Sl.No. 

2.23 Additional Regulatory Information required 
by Schedule III

I) Where company has revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment, the company shall 
disclose as to whether the valuation is based 
on the valuation by registered Valuer as 
defined under rule 2 of the Companies 
(Registered Valuers '  and Valuation) 
Rules,2017

 Company has not revalued any Property, 
Plant and Equipment during the year.

ii) Loans and advances in the nature of loans are 
granted to promoters, directors, KMPs, and 
related parties (as defined under Companies 
Act 2013) either severally and jointly with 
any other persons.

 The Company has not made any loans and 
advances in the nature of loans granted to 
promoter, director, KMP and the related 
parties (as defined under Companies Act 
2013) either severally or jointly with any 
other persons.

iii) Details of Benami Property held:

 The Company does not have any Benami 
property

iv) Where the Company has borrowings from 
banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets, it shall disclose 
the following:

 The company does not have any borrowings 
from any bank or Financial institution 
secured on Current Assets.

v) Wilful Defaulter 

 Where a company is a declared wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial Institution 
or other lender, following details shall be 
given:

 The Company is not declared as wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

vi) Relationship with struck off companies:
The Company has no transactions with the 
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Companies struck of under Companies Act 
2013 or 1956.

vii) Compliance with number of layers of 
companies. This clause is not applicable to 
the Company.

viii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of 
Arrangements

 The Company has not entered into any 
scheme of arrangement which has an 
accounting impact on current and previous 
financial year.

ix) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share 
premium: The company has not advanced or 
loaned or invested funds to any other person 
o r  ent i t y  i nc lud ing  fo re ign  ent i t y 
(intermediaries) with the understanding that 
the intermediary shall: (a) directly or 
indirectly lend or invest, in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantees, 
security or the like to or on behalf of Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

 The Company has not received any fund from 
any person(s) or entity(s), including foreign 
en t i t i e s  ( Fund ing  Pa r t y )  w i th  the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding 
party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

x) Undisclosed Income

 The Company does not have any transactions 
which are not recorded in the books of 
accounts that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax ACT 1961 
(such as, search or survey or any other 
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act 
1961).

xi) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual 
Currency 

 The Company has not traded or invested in 
Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during 
the financial year.

2.24 The following ratio's mentioned below have 
been annexed to the Notes to Accounts:

2.25 The Board of Directors of the Company has 
not proposed any dividend for the year and 
hence no approval of the same is required at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(a) Current Ratio,
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio,
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio   
(d) Return on Equity Ratio,   
(e) Inventory turnover ratio,
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio,
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio,
(h) Net capital turnover ratio,
(i) Net profit ratio,
(j) Return on Capital employed,
(k) Return on investment.

AS PER ANEXURE ANNEXED

As per our Report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S K MALLICK & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI F.R. No.: 324892E

(Dibyendu Banerjee)
Partner 
Membership No.: 052218 

(S. Ghose Chowdhury) 
Director (Finance)

DIN:10194519 

Place:  Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2023 

 (N Roy Pramanik)
HoD Finance

(Nirja Saraf)
Managing Director

DIN: 06901973

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-

Significant Accounting Policies  1
Notes on Accounts                     2
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Note 3 :- Share capital

Sr. 
No. Particulars 

31st March 
2023 

31st March 
2022 

    

(I) Authorised share capital     
  800000 equity shares of Rs.1000/- each 8000 8000 
        

(II) Issued, subscribed & paid-up share capital 7696.04 7696.04 
        
  Share holding pattern and details 
  Shareholder % holding   No.of shares 
    
  769604 Equity Share of Rs. 1,000/- each fully paid 
   (Of the above 50,204 shares allotted as fully paid up  
    pursuant to an instruction of the Government of India 
    letter No. L31(2)/81-DV dated 26.03.1982 for which,   
    payment was received otherwise than in cash)         
        
  Total share capital 7696.04 7696.04  

Note 3.1 : Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding is set out below:

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 
        

(I) Equity shares at the beginning of the year 769604 769604 
  Add: Shares issued during the current financial year                           -                                -    

  Equity shares at the end of the year 769604 769604 

Note 2.2 : The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Note 2.3 : There is no fresh issue or buyback of shares during the year.

Note 2.4 : The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Note 2.5 : There is no change in the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Note 2.6 : There is no change in the pattern of shareholding during the year. It is same as the last year.

Note 4: Reserve & Surplus

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 
      
(I) Opening balance (11,712.08) (12,459.20) 
(II) Add :- Capital Reserve 19,370.64     19,370.64  
(III) Add:- Profit  for the year 1,019.37        747.16         
  Total 8,677.93  7,658.60  

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Note 4.1

In terms of letter dated 09/09/2021 issued by Government of India ministry of Chemicals & Fertilisers Department of 

Pharmaceuticals the entire loan along with interest accrued amounting to Rs. 193.71 lacs have been waived in lieu of 

transfer of 19.78 acres of land of this company at Panihati to National Institute of Pharmaceuticals Education and 

Research (NIPER). Though the entire amount of the loan had been transferred to Capital Reserve account during the 

Financial year 2021-22, the ownership of land has actually been transferred to NIPER during the Financial Year 

2022-23.

Note 5 : Long term borrowings

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022  
    
    

  Term Loans (Unsecured)      

(I) Government of India -  (a) Plan Loan                            -                                 -

(II) Interest Accrued on Government of India -  Plan Loan                            -                                 -

       

(III) Government of India -(b) Non Plan Loan                            -                                 -

(IV) Interest Accrued on Government of India -  Non Plan Loan                            -                                 -   

  TOTAL                            -                                 -

Note : Deferred tax liability

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 
    

Opening balance 
 

 

Total reversible timing difference in books maintained as per  

Companies Act 2013 

Depreciation as per Companies Act 2013 

 

Total reversible timing difference in books maintained as per  

Income Tax Act 1961 

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act 1961 

 

Net reversible timing difference (1) - (2) 

 

Deferred tax asset recognised for the year 

   
Add : Deferred tax income/(expense)        

  Total                            -                                -   

 

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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Note 6 : Trade payables

Note 6.1 : Steps have been taken to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small 
enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Since no intimation 
has been received from the suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at 31st March 2021, disclosures 
relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, if any, have not been furnished. In the opinion of the management, 
the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be 
material.

Sub note 6(i) Trade Payables ageing schedule : As at 31st March, 2023

Sr. 
No. Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
   

  Less than 1 
year  

1-2 years
 

2-3 years
 More than 3 years  

Total

              

(i) MSME -    -         -                             -                      -

(ii) Others 1,316.78        4.68    16.12                      10.91          1,348.49 

(iii) Project 60.54  20.72  (35.75)                     530.39             575.90 

(iv) Disputed dues- MSME          

(v) Disputed dues - Others                            -

Sub note 6(ii) Trade Payables ageing schedule : As at 31st March, 2022

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
  

  
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  

More than 3 
years  

Total  

             
(i) MSME                           -   -          -              -    -  
(ii) Others 1,337.98  49.70  -          34.55  1,422.23  
(iii) Project                           -       -       -    681.83  681.83  
(iv) Disputed dues- MSME         -  
(v) Disputed dues - Others -

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.  Particulars  31st March 2023  31st March 2022  
    

(I) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                           -    
                            

-    
       
(II)

 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises  

                
1,924.39  

                  
2,104.06       

     
  Total [ I  +  II]  1,924.39    2,104.06  
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Note 7 : Other Current Liabilities 

Sr. 
No.  Particulars  31st March 2023  31st March 2022  

        

(I)  Statutory Dues:      

      

Statutory Liability                  1,774.93                    1,765.47  

Liability for Expenses                     488.56                       251.29  

Interest Accrued on Provision/Grants                            -                           64.25  

Salary Arrear Provision/Govt Grant
                           

-
                               

-
   

Deposits Refundable                     272.87                       260.55  

Provision for Corporate Social Responsibility                            -                           10.30  

      

                  2,536.36                    2,351.87  

(II) Other Dues:      

      Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                            -                                -    

Interest accrued on security deposit CNF                       10.13                          7.50  

Deposits from Tenants                     664.75                       479.64  

Payables to Employees & Others                       23.59                         20.39  

Provision for employee benefits-long term                     949.73                       897.29  

      

                    1,648.20                    1,404.82          

        

  Total [ I  +  II ]                  4,184.56                    3,756.69  

BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LTD., KOLKATA

(A Government of India Enterprise)

42  ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23ND

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Sub-note 7.1 : Outstanding Liabilities

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022  

     

I) Statutory Liability     

        
  Income Tax-contractors                        8.21                          2.73  

  TCS                        0.00                         (0.34)  

  Professional Tax                        0.61                          0.65  

  Commssioner P.F./Pension Scheme                           -                                -     

  Commissiioner E.S.I.                        1.57                          1.55  

  Income Tax deducted from salary                        6.78                          3.12  

  Property Tax payable                 1,757.77                    1,757.77  

  Prime Minister Relief Fund                           -                                -             

  TOTAL (I)                 1,774.93                    1,765.47          

II) Payable to Employees & Others             

  BCPL Samabaya Samity Maniktala                        6.67                          4.78  

  BCPL Cooperative Credit Society Panihati                        2.75                          2.40  

  BCPL Cooperative Stores Panihati                           -                                -     

  Rasayan Cooperative Credit Society                           -                                -     

  Bengal Chemical Club                        1.03                          0.91  

  BCPL Cooperative Stores Maniktala                           -                                -     

  Unpaid Salary                        0.16                          0.16  

  Unpaid Travelling Bills                        0.85                              -     

  Insurance claim suspense                           -                                -     

  Employees Dues                      12.15                         12.15   

  BCPL Trustees Provident Fund                       (0.02)                              -     

  P.F Loan paid to & realised from employees                        0.00                              -     

  Interest on P.F Loan realised from employees                           -                                -             

  TOTAL (II)                      23.59                         20.39  

        
III) Deposits Refundable     
        

  Security deposit refundable others                    146.68                       114.37  

  security deposit refundable CNF                    126.18                       146.18  

  Other deposit refundable-property tax                           -                                -     

  Deposit from customers                           -                                -     

  Advance received from customers                           -                                -             

  TOTAL (III)                    272.87                       260.55  

        
IV) Provision for employee benefits-Long term     

        
  Provision for Gratuity                    556.27                       524.98  

  Provision for Leave Encashment                    393.45                       372.31          

  TOTAL (IV)                    949.73                       897.29  

 

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Note 7.2:

Company has been advised that no municipal tax can be levied by local government on its property since 

the same is owned by Union of India since the entire 100% shares of Bengal Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals 

Ltd (BCPL) is held by Hon’ble President of India. As a result, President of India is owner of all its properties 

and assets of BCPL. Since ownership of the said properties are vested with the Central Government and in 

view of the same, Article 285 of the Constitution of India allows exemption of property of the Union from 

State taxation. Similarly entire properties of BCPL is entitled to exemption of property of the Union from 

state taxation.

In terms of a writ petition filled by Bengal Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Limited before the Hon’ble 

Division Bench of Bombay High Court an interim order was passed thereby restricting Municipal 

Corporation Gr Mumbai & Others not to take any coercive action on the basis of certain demand (Municipal 

Tax by State) raised by the Municipal Commissioner. On the basis of reasons provided above Provision for 

Property Tax has not been created by an amount of Rs. 87.28 Lacs.

Note 8 : Short Term Provisions 
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Schedule - 10
 Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) / Intangible assets under development (ITAUD) as on 31/03/2023

Schedule - 10 (A)
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Sub note 13(i) Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2023    (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. No.

 

Particulars
 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment    
Less than 6 

months 
6 months 
-1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 3 
years  

Total
 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 1999.98 513.74 120.00 200.76 873.21  3,707.69  
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful      137.76  137.76  
(iii) Disputed trade receivables  considered good        -  
(iv) Disputed trade receivables  considered doubtful        -  

Total        3,845.45  

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. No.
 

Particulars
 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment   
Less than 6 

months 
6 months 
-1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 3 
years  

Total
 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 1,253.71 201.50 178.24 138.09 825.68  2,597.22  
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful         114.05  114.05  
(iii) Disputed trade receivables  considered good           -  
(iv) Disputed trade receivables  considered doubtful           -  

Total           2,711.27  

Sub note 13(ii) Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2022
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Note 14 : Cash and bank balances

Note 15 : Short term loans and advances (Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)Sub Note 15.1 : Unutilized Input GST

Sub Note 15.2 : Advance recoverable from Employees

Sub Note 15.3 : Rent & other receivables

BENGAL CHEMICALS & PHARMACEUTICALS LTD., KOLKATA

(A Government of India Enterprise)

42  ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23ND

96



(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sub Note 15.4 : Income tax & other deposits

Sub note 16.1 sales of products
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Sub note 18.1 cost of material consumed
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RATIO ANALYSIS

* Capital Employed could be treated three ways 

Total Assets - Current Labilities 

Fixed Assets + Working Capital

Equity + Long Term Debt

ROI as per GN

ROI = {MV(T1) – MV(T0) – Sum [C(t)]} 

{MV(T0) + Sum [W(t) * C(t)]} 

where, T1 = End of time period 

T0 = Beginning of time period 

t = Specific date falling between T1 and T0 

MV(T1) = Market Value at T1 

MV(T0) = Market Value at T0 

C(t) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date 

W(t) = Weight of the net cash flow (i.e. either net inflow or net outflow) on day ‘t’, calculated as [T1 – t] / T1  

Companies may provide ROI separately for each asset class (e.g., equity, fixed income, money market, etc.).




